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Board ofGovernors ofthe Federal Reserve System

Annual Report of Holding Com

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section s(cXlXA) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. S 18a4(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a)
and 13(a) of the lnternational Banking Act (12 U.S.C. SS 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(aX1), 25, and 254 of the Federal
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. SS 248@)(1),602, and 611a); and sec-
tions 113, 165, 312, 618, and 809 of the Dodd-FrankAct (12 U.S.C.
SS 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(cX1), and 5468(bX1)). Return to the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specified.

Y-6

This report form is to be bank holding compa-
nies, toptier savings and loan companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies org under U.S. law, and by
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require-
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga-
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S
211 .23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid
OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by
one director of the top{ier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top{ier holding company. ln the event
that the top{ier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporatlon or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.

l, Denise Reynolds
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

Executive Vice PresidenUDirector
Title of the Holding Company Director and Official

attest that lhe Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
reporl, the Reporler certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserye may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of lnformation," 12 C.F.R. Part 261 ,

thqt the Repoder and individual consent to public release of all
OFNIs rn the repoficoncerning that individuat.

[ \o^rsr Qut.^o0Aa

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end)

December 31,2017
Month/Day/Year

None
Reporter's Legal Entity ldentifier (LEl) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address

Charter Bancshares, I nc.
Legal Title of Holding Company

PO Box 10306
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

Corpus Christi TX 78460
City State Zip Code

10502 Leopard Street Corpus Christi TX78410
Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed
Paula Rod Vice President
Name Title

361-855-3701 17
Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

361-851-2068
Area Code / FAX Number

prod@charterbankcc. com
E-mailAddress

www. charterbankcc. comsffitriior xoroinI co.
02t01t2018 {ri 

oirector ano Otriciat

Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Date of

For Federal Rese Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
c.l

L

Offlce of Management and Budget, PapeMork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, 0C 20503. pt2}16

For holding companies not registered with the SEC-
lndicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

E is included with the FR Y-6 report

E will be senl under separate cover

n is not prepared

0=No

1=Y6s 0
ls confidential treatment requested for any portion
of this report submission? ..

ln accordance with the General lnstructions for this report
(check only one),

'1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along
with the report ........,.

2. a letterjustifying this request has been provided
separately.. ...

NOTE: lnformation for which confidential treatment is being
requested must be provided separately and labeled
as "confidential."

tr
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For Use By Tiered Holding Gompanies
Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing addresg and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies
below.

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Tltle of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State City StateZip Code Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Tille of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State Zip Code State Zip CodeCity

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State Zip Code Stete Zip CodeCity

Physical Location (if difierent from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if difrerent from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

't212012



Form FR Y-6

Charter Bancshares, Inc.
10502 Leopard St.

Corpus Christi TX 78410

Fiscal Year End December 3lr20l7

The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its shareholders. Two
copies are enclosed.

2.a. Organizational Chart

I

100 o/o

2.b. Branches - emailed to Structure.Verification@dal.frb.orq on 01-30-17
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CHARTER BANCSHARES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER3I,20I7

a



CllR I I FII.t) PU BI IC r\(lCOLlNI ANTS
C0LLIER, J0HNSON e wooDs, P.C.

555 N. Carancahua, Suite 1()00

Corpus Chrisd, Texas 78401-0839
361-884-9347 . Fax 361-884-9422

s.,wt'.cirv cpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Marclr 2,2018

To the Board of Directors
Charter Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Corpus Christi, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Charter Bancshares, Inc., and
Subsicliaries (a Texas Corporatiorr), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,2017
and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, arrd the related notes to the consolidated firrancial staternents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to tlre prepalation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in tlre United States

of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whetlrer the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the arnounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial'statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmerrt, irrcluding
the assessment of the risks of material misstatemeut of the consolidated financial statenrents, wlrether due to
fi'aud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Conrpany's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures tlrat
are appropl'iate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Cornpany's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estirnates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we lrave obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Charter Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries I



Opinion

In our opiniorr, the consolidated finarrcial statements referred to above present fairly, irr all material
respects, tlre l'inancial position o1'Charter Bancshares, lnc., and Subsidiaries as of December 3 l, 2017 and20l6,
and the consolidated results of their operations, and consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with accourrting principles gerrerally accepted in the United States of America.

U-e.be,,,W e DnJk

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 2



CHARTER BANCSTIARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIBS

CONSOLTDA'[ED BALANCE SH EETS

2017

ASSETS

DECDMBER 31,
2016

Cash and Due fi'onr Banks

Available-{br-Sale Securities at Fair Value (Notes 2 and l7)
Loans, Net of Allowance for Loan Losses of $2,204,438

in 2017 and $2,125,113 in 2016 (Note 3)

[]anking l)r'emises and Equipnrent, Net (Note 4)

Accrued lnterest Receivable

Fcderal l-lome Loan Bank Stock (Note 5)

lioreclosed Assets (Note 6)

Other Assets

.I-OTAL 
ASSETS

135,762,747

3,740,253

1,054,706

99.000

3 I,850

149,174

l2t,t t9,173

3,9 r3,349

99 r,6 r3

538,700

795,138

r 33,563

6,289,s5t
t09,342.133

6,240,064

109,273,369

256,469,4t4 243,004,969

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

[)eposits:

Non intelest-bearing

Interest-bearirrg (Note 7)
'l'otal Deposits

Short-l-elrn Borlowed Funds (Note 8)

Accrued Expenses and Other l-iabilities
Dividends Payable

'l'otal Liabilities

(-'orrrrnitrncnts and Contingencies (Note I I and l2)

Slockholclels' Equ ity:

Corrrnron Stock $ 1,200 Par Value, 2,000 Shares Authorized
1,516.126 and 1,495.526 Shares lssued and Outstanding

in2017 arrd 20 16, Respectively

Sul'plus

Retaincd liarnirrgs (Note 9)

Accunrulated Other Comprehensive Inconre
'l'otal Stockholders' Equity

1-oTAL LtABtLtl'rES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

28,478,0t I 24,490,080

256,469,414 243,004,969

100,039,944

I r8,179,r94
93,846,90 t

109,734,782

2 t 8,2 r9, t38

6,325,000

1,370,172

2,077,093

203,581,683

12,97s,000

867,968

r,090,238

227,991,403

I,8 r9,35 |

11,72t,802
I t,943,83 t

2,993,027

2l 8,5 r4,889

t,794,631

I1,252,822

9,648,620

I,794,007

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Charler Bancslrares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 3



CHARTER BANCSHAITES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIBS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEAR. ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2017 2016

I1,468,287 10,784,714

Inlerest Inconre:

I-oans, lrrcluding Fees

[)ebt Securities:
'l'axable

'l'ax-exernpt

Interest on F-ederal Funds Sold
'l'otal Interest Incorne

lnteresl Expensc:

Interest on Deposits

Interest on Borrowed Funds
'Iotal Intcrest Expense

Net lnterest lncorne

Increase in Provision for Loan l-osses (Note 3)

Nct lnlerest Incorne After Provision

lbr Loan Losses

Noninlerest Incorrre:

Service Irces

Other Operalirrg Irrcorrre

Gairr on Salc ol- Securities

Gain (Loss) orr Foreclosed Assets (Note 6)
'lotal Norrinterest Inconre

Noninterest Expenses:

Salarics arrd Enrployee Benefits

Occupancy and Equiprnent, Net of Rent Incorne

ol'$292,496 in 2017 and $321 ,746 in 2016

Data Processing

Ceneral and Adrnirristrative
'l'otal Noninterest Expenses

NEl'INCOME

15,526

3,220,996

7 5,466

19,s94

4,029,791

6,820

t4,-780,275

349,828

72,865

14,840,91 9

33 1,33 I

55,586

421,693 386,917

14,358,.582

200,000

14,454,002

950,000

14,158,582

I ,331 ,717
562,095

306,805

46,120

13,504,002

1,268,028

561,552

846.886

(7,834)

2,246,731

6,091 ,066

680,414

39 t ,035

1,434,958

2,668,632

5,905,51 8

697,960

353, I 59

1,567,209

8,s97,473 8,523,946

7,807,846 7,648,788

Sec Nolcs to Corrsolidated Financial Statements

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 4



CHARTER BANCSIIARES. !NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN'I'S OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR BNDED DECEMBER 3I,
2017 2016

7,807,1146 7,(r48,788Nct lnconrc

Aviri lablc-lirr'-Salc Scculitics:

Itcclassillcation Atljustrlcnt lbr Nct Gain lncluded in Net lncomc
('harrgc irr Nct [Jnrcalizcd Gain on

Avai lablc-lirr-Salc Scculitics
-lirtal Availablc-lirr-Salc Scculities

't{)'t'n l. o l tltil( coMPItt,tiltNStvlt INCoMU

COMMON
STOCK

306,805

892.215

846,886

(4.7 t0,744)

9,006,86(r

CONSO LI DATED STATEM EN'I'S OF CTIANG E,S I N S'I'OCKTIOLD EIIS' EOU ITY
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CHARTER BANCSHARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDA'I'ED STATEMEN'TS OF CAS}I FLOWS

YEAR ENDBD DIICBMBBII 3I,
2017 2llt6

7,807,846 7,648,788
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Adjustrncrrls to Rcconcilc Net lncorlc to Net

Caslr l)rovidccl by Opcrating Activitics:
l)cplcciation
l'rovision lbr Loan [,osscs

Writc dorvn ol'Othcl ltcal Llstatc

Stock Cornpcnsation ljxyrcnsc

l)rcrniunr Anrorlization Nct ol' Discourrt Accretion

orr Sccuril ics

Cain orr Scc:ulitics

((iain) l,oss on Salc of lrorccloscd Asscts

Nct ('harrgc in:

Accructl Inlcrcsl ltcccivablc
Othcr Asscts

Acclucd lixpcnscs and Othcr l,iabilitics

Nct Clash l)rovidcd by Opclating Activitics

Cash l;lorvs lionr lnvcstirrg Activitics:
l,oan Originntions and I)rincipal Collcctions. Nct

Activity in Availablcr-lilr-Sale Securitics:

Maturitics, I)rcpaynrcnts and Calls

Salcs

l)ulclritscs

l'ulclrasc ol'l:cdcral I Ionrc l-oan Llank Stock

Salc ol'l;ctlcral I lornc l,oan llank Stock

I)urclrasc ol' Ilank l)rcnriscs and Equiprncnt

I)r'occcds liurn Sale ol'lfolccloscd Asscts

Nct Cash I)rovidcd (tJscd) by lnvcsting Activities

Clash Florvs lion.r Financing Activities:
Ncl lrrclcasc (Dcclcasc) in Nonintelest Bcaring Dcposits

Nct Irrcrcasc (l)ccrcasc) in Intcrcst llcaling Doposits

Nct Inclcasc (Dccrcasc) in Borrowcd l;unds

l'rocccds lionr lssuancc ol'Common Stock

l)ividcrrds l)aid

Nct Clash l)rovidcd (tJsed) by l:'inancing Activitics

lncrcasc (l)cclcasc) in Cash and Cash llquivalents

Cash antl Clsh Ilquivalcnts, llcginning ol'Ycar

cASlt nNt) ctASil DQUIVAT-DNTS, UNI) OF YEAI(

Supplcrlcnlary Cash Irlorv lnlormation:

Intorcst l)aitl on l)cposits arrcl L]orrowcd Funds

Nonctsh Invcsting arrd l;inancing Activities:

lrort:closurc ol' Othcr Ilcal listatc

llcclassillcation Acliustnrcnt lbr Nct Cain lnclttdcd in Nct lnconrc and

Changc irr [Jnlcalizcd Gain (l.oss) on Availablc-for-Sale Sccurities

3,9s5,315 (21,590,292)

49.487 (2,t)70.957)

6,240,064 8,3 I t,02 r

6,289,551 6.240,064

4l I, r90 375,713

900.263 1,248.25t

r, r99,020 (3,n63,858)

222,956

200.000

(1.92s.2t2)
(306,80s)

(46, I 20)

(2,602,491)

(846.n86)

7.834

237,468

950,000

20.208

22.000

(56.49n)

(3 r,354)

12,074

(63.0e3)

(r5.6rr)
502,203

6,376.164 5,3(r I,143

(t 5 ,7 43 ,837 ) (t t ,t t 4 ,226)

40,t02.273

I1.879.444
(48,6 re,443)

(804,200)

1,243,900

(4e,n60)

1,709,671

( I 0,282.052) 20, I 58, I 92

44,924,301

28.221.123

(41,826,228)

(437.(,00)

(34.255)

425,071

6, I 93.043

8.444.412

((r.650,000)

493,700

(4,525,780)

(25,537,609)

(4.814"642)
(r,650.000

665.200

(4,553,24 r)
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CIIN I{'|EIT BANCSIIAII.ES. INC. AND SUI}SIDIAI{IES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDA'|ED FINNNCIAL S'|.NTEMEN'I'S

DECEMBER 3 I. 20I7 AND 20I6

Nolc I - St.JMMAI{Y OF SIGNIFICANT'ACCOI..INTING POLIClES

-l'he 
accounting and reporting practices of Charter Barrcslrares, Inc. (l)arent Cornparry) and ils

wholll, olvned strbsidiaries (colleclively rcferred to as Cornparry) confornr to accourrling principles
gencrally accepte:cl irr the Unitetl States of America and to general practice within the bankirrg incluslry.
'l'hc lbllowirtg is a clcscription of'thc rnore signilicant policies.

P rirtti ;llcs ol' Corrsolirlation

'l'lre consolidated firrancial staternents include the accounts of Clrarler []ancslrares, lnc. arrcl its
rvholly orvrrc'd subsidiary Charter Bank (Barrk). 'I'he lJank owns 100% of Nortlr and Soutlr l)adre I-.1,.C.
wlriclr owrrs 7.1116% interest in a partnerslrip lvhiclr owtts lttttcl on South Paclrc lsland. Allsignilicarrt
irrlcrcornpany transactiorrs and balances lrave been elinrinated in corrsoliclation.

Datc of Managenrcnt's Review

Subsequerrl events wcre evaluatecl through March 2,2018 wlrich is the dale tlre l-irrancial
statc'rrrcnts lvclc availablc to bc issued.

Nature of O;lcrations

'I'hc Cornpanl,provides a variety of llnarrcial services to indivicltrals arrd corporate custolners
lluough thrcc branchcs in Corpus Christi arrd Rockport, Texas. 'Ihe econorny ol'Nueccs Courrty, the

Cornlrauy's prirrcipal market area, is diversified and consists of militaly, agricultural, energy, light
irrdustry, arrd service industry sectors. The Conrpany's prinrary sorlrce ol revenue is loans to
cornrrrcrcial entilics and individuals within its principal market area.

Usc ol'Iistinrates

In prcparing ol- lirrancial statenrents in conl'orrnity with generally acccptccl accounting
prirrciples, nlallagerlrent is required to rnake estirnates and assuntptions that allect the reportcd antouuts
ol'asscts and liabilities as of the date ol'tlre balance sheet arrcl the reporled arnounts oIrcvenrres and

cxpcnscs cltrring the reporting period. Actual rcsults could differ fi'orn thosc cstitnales. Material
c:slirralcs tlrat ale partictrlarly susceptible to significant cltange in llre ttcar lerttt rclate to the
tlctcrrnination ol-the allowance fbl loan losses and fair values olittvesttnents secttt'ilics,

Signilicant Croup Concentrations of Crcdit Ilisk

Most ol'the Cornpany's activities are with custonrers located irr the South'l'exas region. Note
2 cliscusscs lhe types ol'securities in wlrich the Cotnpany invests. Note 3 discusses the lypes ol'lendirrg
irr wlrich thc Clornpany engages. Althouglr the Bank has a diversificd loan portlblio, a sttbslantial
poltiorr ol'its debtors' ability to holror their contracts is clependent upon the oil antl gas attd contntercial

rcal cslatc btrsiness econorlic sectors,

Chartel l3artcsltares, lttc. ancl Subsidiaries 1



Notc I - STJMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continuation)

Cash antl Cash Equivalents

Iror tlre purposes of tlre staternent of caslr flows, cash arrd cash equivalerrts irrclude cash ancl

lralanccs due ll'orn banks and l'ederal furrds sold, allof whiclt mature within nittety days.

Sccu ritics

Sccurilies that nray be sold in response to, or in anticipatiou of, changes in irrterest rates and
rcsulting prepayrnerrt risk, or other factors, are classified as available-for-sale arrd carried at fair value,
witlt urtrealized gains and losses exclucled ft'om earnings and repoiled irr other cornprelrerrsive inconre.
I)urcltase pretttiurns and discounts are recogrrized in interest incorne usirrg tlre interest rnethod over llre
ternrs of tlrc securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on 1he tracle date and are

detcrrninecl using tlre specific identification method. The Cornpatty is an S corporation and does not
acl jusl unrealiz.ed gains and losses for taxes.

ln conrpliance with the Finarrcial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accourrtirrg Standards
Codillcaliorr (ASC) 320- l0 Investments - De bt Securilies accourrting guidance related to the recognilion
arrd presenlation ol' olher-than-temporary impairment, declines in lair value of available-lbr-sale
securities lhat are deemed to be other-than-temporary are reflected in earnirrgs as realized losses. 'lhe

Cornpany recognizes an impairnrent loss wlren the impairnrent is deerned otlter thatt temporary even il
a clccisiou lo scll has not been made. ln deterrnining whelher other-tlran-ten.lporary itnpait'tnertt cxists,
llranagcrnent considers many factors, including: (l)the length of lime ancl the extertt to wlrich the lair
value lras been less than cost, (2) the tlnancial conditioll and near-ternt prospects ol'the issuer, and (3)
thc inlent and ability of the Cornparry to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of tinre sulficient
to allow lilr any anticitrlated recovery in fair value.

Loans

'flre Contpany grants nrortgage, cornmercial and consumer loans lo custorners. A sttbstarrtial
portiorr of these loans is to customers in South Texas. The ability of tlre Company's debtors 1o ltonor
tlrcir contracts is clcperrdent upon the econonric conditions in this area.

'l'he Cornpany has lending policies arrd procedures in place to grant loans to borrowers only
allcr a lirll evaluatiorr of the credit history and repayment abilities of the borrowcr. Conttncrcial attd

rcsiclcntial rcal cslate loans are subject to underwriting stanclards tlrat evaluate caslt llow arrd fair value
olthc collateral. 'l-lre collectibility of realestate loans rnay be adversely alfected by conditions in the

rcal cslatc nrarkets or the general econorny. Management monitors and evaluates real estate loaus based

on collateral, geography, and risk criteria.

Cornnrercial loans are underwritten alter evaluating and understandirrg the borrower's ability
to opcrate profitably. Suclr evaluations involve reviews of historical and cash llow projecti<lns and

valuatiolrs of collateral provided by the borrower. Most conrmercial loans are sccurecl by the assets

bcing linanced or other available business assets and fi'equerrtly ittclttde a personal guarantce by the

priucipal owncrs; lrowever, sonre comrrercial loarrs may be nrade on atr ultsecrlred basis. "['he

repayrnent ol'cornrnelcial loans is subslantially dependent on the ability of borrowet's to operate tlteir
trusirrcsses prolilably and collect atnottnts due fi'onr their customers.

Consunrer loans are originated after evaluation of the credit history ancl repaynrent ability ol'

thc bolrowcr basecl orr current personal incorne. '[he repaynrent of consutner loans calt bc atlversely

al'l'cctcd by econornic conditions and olher factors that impact the borrower's ittcottte.

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 8



Notc I - SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continuation)

l.oatts tltat nranagerrerrt has the intent and ability to hold for tlre foreseeahle future or nraturity
arc reportcd at tlreir outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for unearned incorne, tlre allowance
lbr loart losses, unearned interest and any deltrred fees or costs on originated loans and arry prenriums
or discounts on purchased loans. Interest inconre is accrued on the urrpaid principal balance. l-oan
oligirration f,ces, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an acljustrnent of
tlrc rclatcd loan yield using the straight-line rnethod, whiclr marragernent believes is rrot rrraterially
dill-ercnl fl'otn the interest nrethod. The accrual of interest on real estate and conrmercial loans is
discotttittued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process
ol'collectiolt. ln all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual status or charged ol'f at an earlier clale if
collcction of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrural or charged otFis
rcversed against interest income. l'he interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-
rccovcry rnclhod, until quali{ying for return to accrual. L,oaus are returned to accrual stalus when all
lhc principal arrd irrterest anrounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
rcasonably assured.

A loart is considered irnpaired when, based on current infonnation and events, it is probable that
tlte Corupany will be unable to collect the scheduled payrnents of principal or interest wlren due, according
to thc contractual ternrs of the loan agreement. Factors considered by nranagernent irr detennining
itnpairnrerrt include paynrent status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting schedulcd principal
and intcrest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payrnent delays and payrnent
slrortfhlls gencrally are not classified as irnpaired. Managenrent deternrines tlre signillcance of payrnent

dclays arrd payrnerrt shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all cilcunrslarrces
surlourrdirrg the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasorrs lbr tlrc delay, the
borrowcr's plior payment record, and the arnount of shortfall in relation to tlre prirrcipal and irrtcrest owed.
Irnpairrnent is rneasured on a loan-by-loan basis by either the present valuc of expectcd luturo cash llows
discountcd at lhe loarr's efl-ective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the lair value of the
collatcral, if tlre loarr is collateral-dependerrt.

Loarrs are lirlly or partially clrarged down to the fair value of the collateral securing the loarr

rvheu nrarragcrnent determines the asset to be uncollectible, repayment is deerned to be delaycd or
doubtlirl bcyond reasonable time fi'arnes, the borrower has cleclared bankruptcy, or the loarr is past due
Iur an unreasonable time period. Such charge-offs are chalged against the allowance lbr loan losses^

I{ccovcries ol previous loan charge-offs are credited to the allowance lbr loarr losscs only wlrerr the
Cornpany reccives cash or other collateral in repayrlent of the loan.

ln situations related to a borrower's financial difficulties, the Cotnpany rnay grant a concession

to thc borrorver for other than an insignificant period of tirne that would not otherwise be considered.
In such irrstances, the loarr will be classified as a troubled debt restructuring. These concessions may

ilrclude interest late reductions, payrnent forbeararlce, or other actiotts intended to rnininrizc tlre
econornic loss and avoid fbreclosure of tlre collateral. ln cases where borrowers are grantecl new tertns

that provide fbr a reduction of either interest or principal, the Cornpany measut'es an impairntent loss

on thc leslructuring, as noted above for impaired loans.
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Notc I - SUMMAITY OF SlCNlI'ICANT ACCOUNI-INC POLICIES - (Continuation)

Allou,ancc for Loan Losses

'l'he Company maintains an allowance for loan losses as a reserve establishecl through a
provision for possible loarr losses charged to expense, which represents rnanagernerrt's best estinrate of
probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. 'I'he allowartce, in tlte
opirrion ol-rnanagernent, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses and risks inhererrl in the loan
portlblio. 'l'lre Corrpany's rnethodology for tlre allowarrce fol loan losses irrcludes allowance
allocatiorrs calculaled in accordance witlr ASC 310 l?eceit,crbles, and ASC 450 Contingencies.
Accordingly, the nrethodology is based on historical loss experience by type of credit and internalrisk
gradc, specilic hornogeneous risk pools, and specific loss allocations, with ad.iLrstrnents for currerrt
cvcnls arrd couditions.

'l'he Conrparry's process for determinirrg the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses

is dcsigrred to account for credit deterioratiorr as it occLrs. Factors lhat irrflrrcnce the dcternrinatiorr
inclrrde quantiliable aspects, such as loan volunre. loan concentlations, arld loan quality trends,
incltrclirrg trcrrds irr nonaccnral, past-due, and classified loatts; current period loan charge-offs; and

rccoverics. 'l'he deterrnination also includes qr,lalitative aspects, suclr as changes in local, r'egional, or
national econonries or markets, and other faclors. Such clualitative factors are highly judgmental and

recprire constant refinenrent. The Conrpany has an internal loatt review flnction, the objective of which
is to identily polential problern loans, properly classily loans by risk grade, and assist senior
nlanagenrerlt in nraintaining an adequate allowance for loan losses accourtt by leviewing arrd lelining
the rnetlrodology, as needed, based on changing circutnstances.

1'he Conrpany's allowance for loan losses consists prirrrarily of two elernents: (l) a specific
valuatiorr allowance deternrined in accordance with ASC based on probable losses on specif'ic,

irrclividual loarrs and (2) a general valuatiorr allowance deterrnined in accordance with ASC based on

historical loan loss experience for pools of sinrilar loans, which is then acljusted to ret'lect the impact ol'
culrerrt trqrds and conditiorrs.

While nranagernent uses the best inforrnation available to make its evaluation, fitlure additions
to lhe allowance could be required based on clranges in economic conditiorrs. ln additiorr, various
rcgulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Corntrrany's

allorvance lbl loan losses. Suclr agencies may require the Cornpatry to recogtrizc aclditiorts tct tlte
alklr,vance based on their judgrnents about infornration available to thern at tlte tinre of their
exarnination.

Forcclosctl Asscts

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially
rccorcled at lair value, less estinrated cost to sell, at the date of foreclosure, establishittg a ttew cost

basis. Subsecluent to foreclosure, valuatiorrs are periodically performed by managetncltt and the assets

arc carlicd at the lower of carrying arnount or fair value less cost to sell. ILeventte attd expenses fi'om

opcratiorr and changes in tlre valuation allowance are included in net expenses liom foreclosed assets.

Ilanking l'rcnrises and Bquipment

l,and is carried at cost. Premises and equiprnent are carried at cost less ztccumulated

{spleciatiorr. Deprecialion is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on tlte

slraiglrl-l irrc atrd dec I in ing balance rnethod.
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Notc I - SUMMAI{Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continualion)

Conrprehensive Income

Accouutiug priuciples geuerally require that recognized reverrue, expenses, gains, and losses
bc irtcludcd in tret itrcotne. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as urrrealized gairrs and losses
on available-lbr-sale securities, are reported as a separate cornponent of the shareholders'equity sectiorr
of tlrc balance sheet, Such items, along with net inconre, are componerrts ol'cornprehensive incorne.

Fctlcral Inconre Taxes

-l'lte Comparry, with the consent of their shareholders, elected under the lnternal l{evenue Code
lo bc an S Corporation. In lieu of colporatiorr incorne taxes, the shareholders of an S Corporatiorr are
taxecl on their proportionate share of tlre Company's taxable income. 'lherefore, no provision or liability
Ibr ljc:delal inconre taxes has been included in net income.

1'he Company tiles income {ax returns in the U.S. Federaljurisdiction. The Conrpany is no
lorrgcr subject to U.S. Federal incorne tax examinations by tax authorities for years afler 2013.

Stock Cornpensation Plans

"l'hc Cornpany has a stock based compensation Plan nrore fully described in Notc 14. Stock
corrrpcrrsation accountirrg guidance (FASI] ASC 718 Conrpensqtiott - Stock Conrltensotion) requires
that thc cornpcnsation cost related to share-based paynrent tlansactions be recognized in finarrcial
staterrrcnts. Cornperrsation cost has been nreasured using the thir value olan award on lhe granl dates
arrd is recognized over the service period, which is usually the vesting periocl. Cornpensation cost
relatcd to thc rrorr-vested portion of awards outstanding as of the transition clate are based on the grant-
tlatc lair value ol'tlrose awards.'l'he standard continues to allow the Conrpany lo use tlre intrinsic value
rne(lrod, irr r,vhich cornpensation cost is the excess, if any, of the nrarket price of'the stock at the granl
datc over tlre ar.nount an ernployee must pay to acquire the stock if tlre Conrpany carurol reasonably
estirnate Iair value because it is rrot practicable for it to estirnate lhe expected volatility of its share
price.

llcvcnue llccognition

lntcrest income and expense is recognized on the accrual method based ott the respective
orrtslanding balauces. Other revenue is recoglrized at the tirne the selvice is rendered or transactiorrs
occrtr.

Ncw Accounting Pronounccmonts

ln September 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accourrtirrg
Stanclarcls Updale (ASU) No.20l1-09, Revenue l.-rom Conlrucls wilh Cu.stonrers. AStJ 2014-09
irnplcrnents a comn-rorl revenue standard that clarifies the principles for recogrrizing revettue. '['lte core
principle of ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize I'evenue to clepict tlte trattsfer of prornisecl

goods or services to custonrers in an amount that reflects the considet'ation to which the entity expects

to be errtitled in exchange lbr those goods or services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should

apply tlre fbllowing steps: (i) iderrtify the contract(s) with a customer, (ii) identily tltc perlbrmance

obligations in thc contract, (iii) deternrine the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction price 1o the

pcrlirrrnance obligations iu tlre contract, arrd (v) recognize revenue when (ol as) tlre errtity satisfies a

pcrlbrrnarrce obligatiorr. ASU 2014-09 will be efl'ective fbr nonpublic business entities in 2018. The

Cornpany is still evaluatirrg the potential irnpact of this new ASU on its colrsolidatcd financial
statcrncnts.

Charter Bancslrares, lttc. and Subsicliaries I I



Notc I - SUMMARY OF SICNII;lCANl'ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continuation)

Irr l.-ebruary 2016, tlre FASB issued (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases ('topic 842) irrtcnded to
irnprove l'irrarrcial reporling regarding leasing trarrsactions. The new standard affbcts all companies and
orgarrizatiorrs that lease asscts. The standard will require organizations to lccognize on tlre statenrent
ol'llnancial conclition the assets and liabilities lor the rights and obligalions created by those leases if
the lcase tenns are rnore tharr l2 months. The guidance also will require qualitative and quantitative
tlisclosures providirrg additional information about the amounts recorded irr the firrancial
statenrents. The anrendrnents in tlris update are effective for fiscal years begirrrrirrg al'ter Decenrber 15,

2018. irrcluding interirn periods within those fiscal years. The Conrpany is evaluating tlre potential
irrrpact olthe arnendment on lhe Conrparry's financial statements.

ln.lune 2016, tlre I.'ASB issued (ASU) No.20l6-13, Fincrncierl Instrument.s L'reclit Losses
('litpic 32(t) inlended to implove financial reporting by requiring timelier recording of credit losses on
loans and other financial inslrumerrts held by financial institutiorrs and other organizations. l-he
staudald requires an organization to measure all expected credit losses fur financial assets held at the
rcporting date based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable
Iorecasts. Firrancial institutions and other organizatiorrs will now use l'orward-looking inlbnnation to
better inlorrn their credit loss estirnates.'lhe standard also requires enhanced disclosures to lrelp
investols and other flnancial staternent users better understand signilicant estinrates and judgrnents used
in eslirnating credit losses, as well as the cledit quality and underwriting standards of an organizalion's
portfblio. These disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirernents that provide additiorral
infbrrnation about the amounts recorded in the financial statements. Additionally, the starrdard arnends
llre accounting fbr crcdit losses on available-fbr-sale debt securities and purchased financial assets witlr
crcclit deterioratiorr.'lhe anrenclrrents in this update are effective for llscal years beginrring after
Deccnrber 15,2020, including interim periods within those flscal years. All entities nray adopt the
arnendrnents in this update earlier as of the fiscalyears begirrning after Decernber 15, 2019, including
intcrirn periods within those fiscal years. An entity will apply the arrendnrents in this update through a

curnulative-ef'fect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first reportirrg periocl irr

rvhich tlre guiclance is eflective (that is, a nrodified-r'etrospective approach). 'flre Company believes the
anrendnrcrrts in this upclate will have an impact on the Company's financial statenrents and is working
to evaluate the sigrrificance of that irnpact.

Tlre FASB issued (ASU) 2016-15, Statement of Ca:;h Flou's (Topic 230). Clet.s.siJiccrtion oJ

Ccrtttirt (losh Rec'eipt,s and Cush l'u.)unerts, which nrade the lbllowing chartges tltat nray affect the

C-<lrnpany: ( I ) Debt Prepaynrent or Debt Extinguishrnent Costs: Cash payrnents for debt prepayrnenl or
cicbt cxtinguishntent costs should be classified as cash flows for financing activities. The anrerrtlnrents

in tlris ASU will be effcctive for errtities other than public business entities for fiscal ycars beginrrirrg

a{lcr Decernber 15,2018. The Company does not expect the guidance to have a material impact on its
Iinancial statemcnts.

Charter Bancshares, Iltc. attd Subsidiaries 12



Note 2 - SECUI{I'IIES

The amortized cost and fair values of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, as of
Decenrber 31,2017 and2016 arc as follows:

AMORTIZED

COST

GROSS

UNREAI,IZED

CAINS

GITOSS

UNREALIZED

LOSSES

FAIR

VALT]E

Decenrber 31,2017

A vailab le-for-Sale Securit ies

Municipal Bonds

Other

TOTAL

Decernber3l,20l6

A vailable-for-Sale Securit ies

Municipal Bonds

Other

t06,349,106 3,t62,753 169,726 109,342,133

106, I 94,106

I 55.000

3,162,753 169,726 1 09,1 87, t 33

I 55,000

107,324,362

155,000

2,743,834 949,827 r 09, il 8,369

r55,000

TOTAL t07,419,362 2,743,834 949,827 109,273,369

As of Decernber 31,2017 and 2016 securities with a fairvalue of $1,375,377 and $1,29J,947,
respectively, were pledged to secure public funds and for otlrer purposes required or perrnitted by law.
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Notc 2 - SI,CIURI'IIES - (Continuation)

'I'he lbllowing table sltows the maturity distribution of the security porttblio at Dccernber 31,
20t1

AVAI I-ABI,I]- FOR-SALt]

SIlCUIIITIES
AMOIITIZED

cos't'
ITAIR

VALUE

Dr"rc ll'orrr One Year to Five Years

I)ue fiom Irive to Ten Years

Over'l'en Yeals
'l'otal

31,483,222

60,212,405
8,648,479

39,229,535

61,55(r,213

8,552,38s

t06,344,106 I 09,337, I 33

No Statecl MatLrrity Date 5,000 5,000

'fo'fAL
I 06,349. r 06 I 09,342, I 33

For the year ended f)ecember 31,2017, proceeds fi'onr sales of securities available-for-sale
arrrorrrrtccl to $11,819,444 and gross realizecl gains arnounted to $30(r,805. For thc year ended
l)cccrttbcr 31,2016, proceeds fl'onr sales of securities available-fbr-sale amountcd to !$28,221,123 ancl
gross realizecl gains amourrtccl to $846,886.

Irrlbrrnation pertainirrg to securities with gross unrealized losses at Decernber 31,2017 and
2016 aggregated by investnrent category, nurnber of issues and length of tirne tlrat irrdividual securilies
have been in a continuolrs loss positiorr, follows:

I,IJSS'f IIAN I2 MON'I'IIS OVlrl{ l2 MON'l'llS
GROSS

UNITI]N LIZtil)
I,OSSI]S

l:n ll{
vn t.utl

(NTOSS

IJNI{IiA I,IZIJI)
I,OSSI]S

IJA II{
vn t.tJt

'l'(I|'AL

tlNttlin LlZl,l)
l.OSSllS

l)cccrrrbcr 3l,2Ol7
Murricipal []unils 167.3{t9 15.663.56(r 2,337 967,0(tl 169,726

I)cccrrrbcr'31,201(r

Murricipal Ihrrds 949,827 42,332,309 949,827

Marragcrnent evaluates seculities for other-than-temporary irnpairnrent at least on a quarterly
basis, artd rnorc fi'cquently when economi0 or market conccrns warrarrt such evaluation. Management
has the ability and inlent 1o hold tlre securities lor a period of time sufficient lbr a recovely of cost. 'l'hc

unrcalizcd losscs are largely due to increases in market interest rates overyields available at the time
tlrc urrderlying securities were purchased. 'Ihe fair value is expected to recover as the boncls approach

tlrcir nraturity date ol repricing date or if nrarket yielcls for such inveslnrents clecline . Managcmcrrt does
rrot bclicve any of the securities are impaired due to reasons of credit quality. Accordingly, as of
Decernber 31,2017, nranagement believes the inrpairments delailed in the table above are temporary
ancl no inrpairnrent loss has been realized in the Conrpany's consolidated incorne statenrent.
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Notc 3 - LOANS

Loans, as of December 3 l, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following

2017 2016

Commercial

Cotnrnelcial Real Estate

Construction and Land Development

Residential Real Estate

Consumer

TotalLoans

Less:

Allowance for Loan Losses

Unearned Loan Fees

NET LOANS

Loans at Fixed lnterest Rates

l-oans at Variable Interest Rates

TOTAL

48,045,080

35,217,614

38,189,863

16,394,990

728.717

32,672,010

32,073,622

39,128,267

18,980,054

1.144.554

I 38,566,1 64

2,204,438

598,979

123,998,507

2,125,1l3

154,221

135,762,747 l2l,l19,l73

I{ate sensitivity of the loan portfolio, at December 31, 2017 and2016,are as follows:

2017 20t6

126p81,671

12A84,493

112,339,755

11,658,7 52

138,566,164 123,998,507
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Note 3 - L,OANS - (Continuation)

Allorvance frlr Loan Losscs

Tlre activity in the allowance for loan losses fbr the year ended l)eccmber 31,2017 is
surlrnarized below:

YIlA I{ t:NI)l :l) l)l:('l:M l}l:l( 3 1, 20 17

CONS'I-ITIJC'I'ION

coMMtillct^t_ AND lltisil)EN'ilAt_
RITAL I-ANI) lL[Al.

COMMlil{ClAL. ltS'l.A'l'Ii I)l:.V:l.Ol'Ml:NI' IIS'l A'llr. CONStlMlill 'l'Ol'Al.

llalarrcc. Ilcg in rr irr g o I'\'ear'

lncrcasc (l)ccrcase) irr-

l\ovis krrr lirr l-oan

losscs
I)cductiorrs:

l-olns Chargcd O{l'
I rs s llccovctics

Ncl loarrs Chargcd OII

llalarrcc. Ilcgirrrr ing ol'Ycar
Int:rcasc irr-

l,rrrv is ion lirr Loau

I osscs

l)cd ucl io n s .

loarrs Chargcd OIT

l.css l{ccovcrics

lln Ln NCIr. I:NI)Olr
YI'AIt

691,150 568,034 565,224 282,8 I 8 l7,llll7 2.125. l t3

( r09,8 r s) (84,884) (47,487) l6.00tt 200.000426.1'18

(8r.8 r r)

26.644 2.937

(36,094)

I3,85 I

(26.665)

275

(24,152)

4.14()

(rcl.722)
48.047

(26,390) ( r9.8l2) ( 120.675)

l]Al.ANC[. I:Nt)OI
YI:A It r,062,t6t 46 r,156

'l'he activity irr the allowance tbr loan losses for tlre year cnded Decenrber 31,2016 is
sulnr)la[ize(l below:

YLIA l{ IlNt)lil) t)l:CllM lllll 3 l. 20 I(r

CONS'I'RI.JC'I'ION

COMMI:l(Cln l. ANI) l{liSll)llN l'ln l-
REA|. |.ANI) Rtint.

COMMI:RCIn t. ES'I'A I'l: t)llvlil()l']MIiN'l' tls'l'A l'li coNsr..lMtiR 'tut'At

(55. | 67) 2.937 t22.243\

445,7,s1

556,346

(l r0,949)

555,842

21.070

(r r,8r r)

2,933

3(4,271

308, I 08

(t4e,e32)

42,777

276.639

2(r,006

(20,000)

t't3
(s 1,.146)

6.690

(-544.0.18)

52.571

24.(173 l.(r(r(r.578

I8,470 950.000

Nct Ioans Chargcd Ofl' (310,949) (8,878) (107,155) (19.t127) (44,(156) (491.4(15)

69t.t50 568.034 565.274 282.tt I I l7,8fi7 2.t25.r rl

Loarrs, or portions of loans, are charged off to the extent deemed uncollectible. l-oalr charge-

ofls reduce tlre allowance for loan losses, and recoveries of loans previously charged o[f arc addcd back
to tlre allowance. Once the fair value for a collateral depenclent loan has been detenninecl, any irnpaired
alnor.lnt is typically charged off unless the loan has other inconre streanrs to support rcpaynlent. Fol
irnpaired loans, which have other income slreanrs to support repaynlent, a specilic l'e.se l've is established
Ibr tlrc anror,nrt determined to be impaired.
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Nolc 3 - I-OANS - (Contirruation)

1'he following tables provide the loarr balance by impairnrent nrethodology. A loan is
considered itnpaired, in accordance with impairment accounting guidance (FASB ASC 310-10-35
Receivuble s - Subsequent Measurentent), when based on current infornration and everrts, it is probable
that lhe Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordanoe with the
contlactualterrns of the loan. Impaired loans totaled 51,725,714 and S1,640,379 at December3l,2017
and 20l6 and are conrprised of loarrs on non-accrual status and loans which lrave been classified as

troubled debt restructurings, All other loans are collectively evaluated for impairment under IrASB
n SC 450-20 l-oss Contingencies. Although the allowance for loan losses is conrprised of specific and
gcrteral allocations, the errtire allowance is available to absorb credit losses.

As of Decenrber 31,2017 and 2016 there was no specific allowance required for inrpaired
loans. 

-l'he following is a sunrmary of irrformation peftaining to impaired loans at December 31,2017
arrcl 2016, segregated between loans for whiclr an allowance has been provided and loans for which no
allowance has been provided:

COMMERCIAI,

CONS'IRUCI'ION

COMMEITCIAT, N NI)

RTTAL LANI)

IIS]'A]'E DEVTLOPMEN'I' coNsuMHr I'ot'AL.

l)cccnrbcr I l, 20 I 7

[Jrrpaid ContractLral

l'r'irtcipal Ilalancc

llccordcd lnvcstnrnt

W ith No Allowanoc

llccordcd hlvestnrnt

With Allorvancc
'l'otal llecorded

IIvos Irtrnt

623,652 805,880 r 8,778 428.296 t,876,606

55,417 775,634 I 8,009 340. I 97 |,t89,257

536,457 536,45'l

591.874 775,634 t8,009 340,197 | .725,714

llclatcd A lkrrvance il7.m0 I 17,000

Avcragc llccorded lnvestnrnt 568,620 705,377 t35,01 I 98, r 52 2.445 1,509,625

RristDriNl IIA I

REAL

[s'tA1'F]

lntcrcst lrrcornc' Ilccogn izcd

For tlrc Ycar Ilrdcd

Dcccnbcr I l. 20 I 7 22,{D3 35,732 4,128 7.768 70,62t
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Nole 3 - I-OANS - (Corrtinuation)

COMML]I{CIAL

CONS-fRI.JC'I'ION

COMMEITCIN L ANI)

Itl]AL I-AND

I]STN T'II DE\ILOPM['NT

IttBIDEN'l'ln L

IUIAt.

ES'TN 'I'E coNsrJMr){ 't'o't'AL

I)cccrnbcr 3 1.201(r

IJnpaid Contrilctual

I)rinoipal []alancc

llccortlctl lrrvcs lrrrcnt

Wilh No Allorvarrcc

I{coordotl Invcstnrcnt

With Alkrrvancc
'l olal llccordcd

Irr vcstrncnt

929,527 686,091 42.742 480,723 5.144 2.144.227

557,307 620.247 42,742 415,794 4.289 1,64t),379

557'107 620,247 42,742 4t5,794 4,289 I,640,379

A vcragc l{ccordcd lnves lnlcnt 502.164 63s.3 l7 605,003 629,657 6.382 2.378.523

lntcrcst hlconrc llcoo gn izcd

lirr tlrq Ycar I irdcd

I)ccr;rtthcr3l,201(r 9,39s 2,042 20,950 32,387

According to guidance provided in ASC 3 l0-40 Troubled Debt Restruclnring.s by Creditors, a

loan restructuring or modification of tenrs is a TDR if the creditor for economic or legal reasons related
to thc borrower''s financial difficulties grants a corrcession to the borrower that it would not otherwise
consider. 'l'he Company's poftfolio of loans classified as TDRs irrclude concessions, such as interest
rates below the current n-larket rate, deferring principal payments, and extending nraturity dates. '[he

Conrpany considers a loan in TDR status in default when tlre borrower's payment according to the
rnodilled terms is at least 90 days past due or has defaulted due to expiration of the loan's rraturity date.
'l'lre lbllowing table summarizes troubled debt restructurings as of Decenrber 3 I ,2017 and 201 6:

NUMBER PRE- POST

OF LOANS MODIFICATION MODIFICAI'ION

Decernber 31,2017
Comrnercial

Commercial Real Estate

55,417 55,417

87 133 87 r33

142,550 t42,550

2

I

3TOTAL
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Nolc 3 - LOANS - (Continuation)

NUMBER
OF LOANS

PRE,.

MODIT.'ICATION
I'OS'f

MODIFICATION

Decernber 31, 20l,6
Cornrlerc ial

Constructior.r and Land

Dcveloprrrenl
l{esiderrtial Real Estate

7 482,391 482,397

42,742
609

'fol-At. 526,748 526,748

Durirrg the year ended December 3 1 ,201J, three loans wele rnodificd nrecting tlrc crilcria for'
It'oublecl debt restructurirrgs. During the year ended Decenrber 31,2016, two loans were modified
rnceling the cliteria lbr troubled debt restructurings.'l-he modillcations dLrrirrg the years endirrg
l)cccrnber'31,201] and2016 prinrarily related to extending amortization periods.'fhere were no'l'DlLs
llrat delaLrltcd urrder the ruodified ternrs in either tlre year ending Decernbcr 31,2017 or 2016 .

'l'he Cornpany's policy to discorrtirtue the accrual of interest irrcorne on loans when
nranagenlent believes that the borrower's financial condition, after consideration ol'business conditions
arrd collcction eflbrts, is such that the collection of interest is doubtfirl, or upon which principal or
inlercst has becn in default for a period of 90 days or nrore and the asset is rrot botlr well sccurecl ancl

in tlrc proccss ol'collection. Subsequent interest payrnents received on sr.rch loarrs are applied to
prirtcipal if any doubt exists as to the collectability of such principal; othcrrvise, such receipts are
recorded as intcrest income on a cash basis. An agreed analysis of past ciue ancl non-accrual loans at
I)cccrnbcr 31,2017 and 2016 follows:

42,742
r,609

9

CUITRENT OR

I,ESS'fIIAN
30 DAYS

PAST DI.JE

30-89

DAYS

PN S1'DUE

90 DAYS

PAST DIJE

AND STILI,

ACCRUING

NON

ACCI{T]AI- TO'r'At-
[)e ccrrrber 3l ,2017

('onrrne rcial
('onunercial lleal lltate
('onslructi<lrr and Land

[)evelopnrent

Ilcs idcntial [{eal l}tate
(il rrs u nrer

46,88s,884

34,529,|3

38, I 7l,854

15,051,444

128,605

622,739

964,646 28,603

|2

536.457

688,50 I

18,009

340,197

48.045.080

35,2t7.614

38, I 89,863

l(r,384,890

728,717

I 35,366,900 1,587,385 28,715 I ,583, I 64 t38,566, I 64
,I'OTAL
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Notc 3 - LOANS - (Continuation)

Deccrrrber'31,2016
(-onltrcrcial
(irrnrnerc ial li.eal Estatc
('onstructiorr and l;rnd

De vclopnre nt
Ilcs idcnt ial l(cal lislate
(lo rr s rr nrer

CURRENT OR

LESS TI-IAN
30 DAYS

I'AST DUE

30-89

DAYS
PAST DUE

90 DAYS
PASl'DI.-JE

AND STILL
ACCRTJING

NON
ACCITUAI, TO'I-AI,

32,100,094

30,683, 143

210,648

770,232

3(t0.267
(t20,247

32,672.010

32,073,622

t,00t

.I'OTAI,
r 20,755,858 1,842,660 1,001 1,398,988 123,998,507

'l'hc tbllowing lable provides inlbrmation about the credit quality ol'the loan portlolio using
oul Contparty's internal lating systern leflecting managernent's risk assessnrent. Loans arc placed on
rvatclt status whcrr (l) orte or more weaknesses which could jeopardize tinrely liquidation cxisls, or (2)
tlte tttat'gitt or liquidity of an asset is sufficiently tenuous that adverse trerrcls could result in a collection
problcrn. I.,oans classilled as substandard are inadequalely protected by the currcnt sound r,v<lrtlr and
paying capacity ol'the obligol or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classillcd rnay lrave a wcll-
dclrrred weakrrcss ol weaknesses that jeopardize the repaynrent of lhe debl. Suclr loarrs are
oharactet'izecl by the distinct possibility that our Conrpany nray sustain sonre loss if the deficielrcies are
ltotcorrcctccl. L.oansareplacedonnon-accrual statuswherr(l)deteriorationinthellnarrcialconditiorr
ol'thc borrower cxists suclr that payment of full principal and interest is rrot expected, or (2) payrnents
of prirrcipalor interest has been in default fora period of 90 days or more and the assel is rrot botlr well
securcd and in llre process ol'collectiorr.

COMMhI(ClAl

CONS'I'RI]C'I'ION

COMMIjI{CIAL AND lth^l,
RllAl- l.ANt) IIS'I'A lli

hSl'A'l'h l)lrvEl.OPMIN'l l{lisll)lN'l'lAL ('ONSLJI\4lrl{'lOlAl-
At l)cccrntrcr 31. 2017

W atclr Status

Subs(arttlard

Norr-rtccnral

I'O tAI_ 2,957.686 1.924,626 219,206 1,332,577 6,434,095

38,679,278 448,989 39,128,267

18,168,725 397,t44 4l4,I85 18,980,054

t,t24,6t8 15,647 -- 4,289 1,144,554

1.993,848 705,292 - 2.699.140

427.381 530,831 20t,197 992,3n0 -- 2.151,791

536,457 6t18,501 I 8,009 310,197 - l,5ttl. l(r4

At I)cccrrrbcr 31. 2016

W ttch Status

Su bs latr dard

Norr -accnr al

2.000,000

732,728

360.267

25 1,040

4,354,576

620,247

1,484,5(16 752,613

414,I85 4,289

2,25 1,040

7,324.503

l,39tt,9lr8

t,48{,566 l.l (r(r,tl I ll 4.289 t0,974,53 rr'()l'A I 1.092.995 5,225.8(r3
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Note 4 - BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A sumnrary of property arrd equipnrent as of December 3 l, 201 7 and 2016 fbllows

2017 2016

I-ess Accumulated Depreciation 4,560,122 4,337,166

NET BANKING PREMISES AND
EQUIPMENT 3.740.253 3,9t3.349

Depreciation expense on the above assets was $222,956 and$237,468 for 2017 and
201 6, respectively.

Note 5 - FEDIII{AL HOME LOAN BANK

'fhe Bank is a member of the Federal l{ome Loan Bank of Dallas and owns 990 and 5,387
sltares of its capital stock at December 31, 2017 and2016 respectively, with a par value and cost of
$ 100 per share. Ownership of Fedelal Home Loan Bank stock is restricted. The stock can be sold only
at par attd only to the Federal Home Loan Bank or to another member institution.

Notc 6 - FOI{ITCLOSED ASSETS

During the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, the Conrpany acquired real estate
properties through foreclosure. The properties are reported at the lower of cost or fair value as follows:

YEA R EN DED DIICEM llllt{ 3 I ,

2017 2016

Land

Bank Premises

Equiprnent, Furniture and Fixtures

Autornobiles

Total Banking Prenrises and Equipment

Construction and land Development

Res idential Real Estate

1,021,456 1,021,456

4,782,318 4,792,319

2,427,133 2,377,273

69,469 69,469

8,300,375 9,250,515

314,992

s85,271

1,248,2s1

900,263 1,248,251TOTAL
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Note 6 - FORECLOSED ASSETS - (Corrtirruatiorr)

Activity in real estate acquired in settlement of loans for the year ended Decernber 31,2017
arrd 2016 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBEI{ 3I
2017 2016

Balance at Beginning of Year

Additions

Charge-offs

Proceeds fi'orn Sales

Net Gain (Loss) on Sales

Net Gairr (Loss) on Sale of Real Estate

l)rovision for Losses

Operating Experrses, Net of Rental Income

NET GArN (LOSS) ON

FORECLOSED ASSETS

20,208

(20,208)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,
2017 20t6

46,120 (7,834)

(20,208)

(72,921)(23,372)

22,748 ( 100,963)

795, I 38

900,263

(1,709,671)

46,120

1,249,251

(20,208)

(42s,071)

(7.834)

TOTAL 3 1,850 795, I 38

An analysis of the allowance for losses on foreclosed assets for the year ended December 31,
201 7 and 2016 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBEI{ 3I,
20t7 2016

Balance at Beginrring of Year

Provision for Losses

Less Ploperty Sold

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

Operating expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following:
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Note 7 - DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more at December 31,
201 7 and 2016 anrounted to $ I 5,81 5,052 arrd $ I 1,141,635, respectively.

Time deposits and their renraining maturities at December 3 l, 201 7 are as follows:

Maturities ol:

Onc Ycar or less

Onc to'l'hree Yeals

'l'hree to Five Years

lrive lo 'l'en Years

.77%FHLB Advarrce Purchased December 19,

2016, Due January 3,2017

Federal Funds Purchased from Frost Bank

I{epurchase Agreement Secured by pledged lnvestment

Seculities, lnterest at .20Vo of Charler Bank's

Money Market Account Rate

14,063,0(r9

I 3, I 03,753

6,t69,162

500,000

'l'orAt, 13,835,984

Note 8 - Sl-lOt(T-'fERM BORROWED FUNDS

At Decentber 31,2011 and2016, short-term borrowed funds amounted to the following:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I
2017 2016

r0,500,000

1,475,0005,325,000

1,000,000 1,000,000

TOTAL 6,325,000 12,975,000

In 2017 the highest amount the Bank advanced fi'om the Federal Honre Loan Bank of Dallas
(FHLB) was $10,500,000 and the amount was outstanding for 28 days. ln 2016 there the highest
arnourlt the Bank advanced from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (FHLB) was $14,800,000 and

the arnount was outstanding for 3l days. Under the terms of the Master Agreement with FHLB, the
Conrpany has $49,223,096 available for advances at December 3 I ,2017 .

Urrder agreements with urraffiliated banks, the Bank may borrow federal funds up to
$4,925,000 on an unsecured basis at December 31,2017.
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Notc 9 - RETAINED EARNINGS

Retairred earnings consist of the following at December 3 l, 2017 and 2016:

2017

Accurnulated Adjustnrents Account:
Balance, Beginnirrg of Year

l'a>able lncorne, Net of Certain Non-Ta>able lterrrs

Distributions
Balance, End ofYear

Other Adjustments Account:
Balance, Beginning of Year

Non-Taxable lnterest
Distributions

Balance, End ofYear

Other Retained Earnin gs :

Balance, Beginning of Year

Diffelences Between Book and Tax Income

Difference Between Accrual Bas is Dis tributions
Balance, End ofYear

Year Errdirrg December 31,

20 t8

2019

2020

2021

2016

4,979,155 4,087,4t8

(4,525,780) (4,087,4 r 8)

4s3,375

I 4,807,504

3,191,342

11,251,261

4,016,064

(46s,82t)

17,998,846

(s, r s8,884)

(362,6s3)
(986.853)

t4,807,504

(5,8 r3,739)

(4s4,694)

I , I 09,s49
(6,508,390) (5, I 58,884)

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END

OF YEAR I t,943,83 t 9,648,620

Note l0 - OPERATING I-EASES

'l'he Company is a lessor of office space under an operating lease expiring Decenrber'31,2021.
Minimunr firture rentals to be received on non-cancelable leases as of Decenrber 31,2017 are as

lbllows:

276,750

276,750

276,750

276,750

TOTAL 1,107,000

Nole I I - COMMI'fMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES

'I'he Company is a pafty to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in
the norntal coufse of business to meet the financing needs of its custonrers. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such comnritments involve, to
varying degrees, elenrents of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amoutrt recogrrized in the

balance sheets.
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Note I I - COMMIl'MENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES - (Continuation)

'fhe Conrpany's exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amourrt oI these
cottltritlleuts. The Company fbllows tlre same credit policies in nraking conrrnitmenls as it does for'
on-balance-sheet instrunrettts. At December 31,2017 and 2016, the following llnarrcial instruments
wcrc outstanding whose contract anloutrts represent crrdit risk:

CONTRACT'AMOUNT
2017 2tJl6

Unfurrded Construction and Larrd Development

Loan Conuuitrtrents

Urtlunded Cornlnitnrents Under l-irres of Credit
Standby l-etters of Credit

11,195,336

17,695,512

6,323,368

19.092,924

16,110,896

3,241,168

Cottrrnitrnents lo exterrd credit are agreelnents to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violatiort olany corrditiorr established in the contract. Conrmitments generally have fixecl expiration
datcs or othcr ternrittation clauses and may require payment of a l'ee.'l-lre cornnritrncnts lbr lines of
ct'cdit rttay cxpire without being drawn upon. Therefore, tlre total conunilrnerrt arnounts do not
ttcccssarily represent future cash requirerrrents. Tlre anrount of collateral obtained, if it is deemed
r)ccessary by the Cornpany, is based on lnanagernent's credit evaluation of thc custonrer.

Standby letters-ofl-credit are conditional comnritnrents issued by tlre Comparry to guarantee the
pcrltrrtnance of a custorner to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public
artcl pt'ivate borrowing arrangements. E,ssentially all letlers of credit issued have expiration clates witltin
otrc year'.l'he crcdit risk irrvolved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the sanre as tlrat irrvolvecl irr
extctrding loarr lzrcilities to customers. The Company generally holds collateral supporting those
cottrtttitttrents if'deerned necessal'y. Conrmitmerrts to extend credit arrd stanclby letters-of-credit all
inclucle cxposurc to some credit loss in the event of nonperforntalrce of the custonrer.

Notc l2 - l,lIGAL CON"I'INCENCIES

'fhe Cornpany is involved in various claims and suits, occurring in tlre nornral course ol'
business. ln the opinion ol'nranagement, potential liabilities arising fi'onr these nralters, il'arry, would
rrot havc a rnatcrial el'fect on the Colnpany's financial condition.

Nole l3 - MINIMtJM ITECTJLATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

'fhc Corlpany (on a consolidaled basis) and the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital
recluircrrrents adnrinistered by state and F'ederal banking agencies. Capital adequacy and pronrpt
corrcctive action regulatious involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and ceffain olf-balance-
slrcct iterns calculated under regulatory accour.rting practices. Capital arr.rounts and classillcatiorrs are

also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about cornponent classiflcation, risk weighting, and
othcr [actors.

'fhe Basel lll capital rules became eIl'ective fbr thc Comparry and Bauk on January 1,2015,
subjcct to a lbur-year phase-in period. Quantitative measures established by the llasel lll capital rules
to cnsrrrc capital adcquacy require the nraintenance of minimum amourrts arrd ratios (set loltlr irr the
lablc bclow) of Conrrnon Equity Tier I Capital, Tier 1 Capital, and 'l'otal Capital to ltisk-Weighted
Asscts, arrd ol'l-ier I Capitalto Average Assets. ln connection with the adoption of the Basel lllcapital
nrles, the Comparry and Bank elected to opt-out of the requircrnent to include nrost corrporrents of
accrrrnulated other cornprehensive incorne in Comnron Equity 1-ier I Capital.
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Notc l3 - MINIMUM I{ECULA-IORY CAPITAL REQUII{EMEN'IS - (CorrtirrLration)

Matragement believes, as of December 3 l, 201 7 and 201 6, tlrat the Conrpany arrd []ank met all
capital adcquacy requirements to which they are subject. As of December 31,2017, the most recent
rrotiflcation li'orn the prinrary regulatory agency of the Bank categorized tlre Bank as well capitalized
urrclcr the regulatoly franrework for pronrpt corrective action.

'l'he l'ollowing tables present actual and required capital ratios as of l)eccrnber 31,2017 and
20l6lbrtheBankunclertheBasel lllcapitalrules. Thenrinimumrequiredcapitalarnountspresentthe
rrrirrirrrrrm requirecl levels as o{'December 31,2017 and 2016 based on the phase-in ol'the Basel III
capital rulcs ancl the nrininrurl required as of January 1,2019, when the phase-in is complcte. Capital
lcvcls to be considered well capitalized under prornpt corrective action regulations are also presented.

MINIMUM Rl:QUlltlrl)
I]OII CA I'I'I'A I,

A I)l iQtJACY-l]ASlil- lll
CtJltltl:N l' I'l ln St1-lN

scHlil)Ul.ll

MINIMUM CAPI'I'AI,
Ifl:QtJllU:l)
t)ASrir. ilr

FUl.t,Y
I'llA SILIN

MINIMIJI\4
lllQtJIltl:l) l() llll

W l:l -1 . CA l'l'l A l.lZ lil)
UNI)tilr PROMPt

C-OI{RIC I'lVIl AC'l lON

I'ROVISIONSACt-tJA l-
(Anxrunts irr 'l housands) AMOUN'I ll.Al lO AMOUN'I ltA'l'lO AMOUN'I It 'IlO AMOUN'I' lU l'tO

l)cccrnbcr J l, 20 1 7:

(irnurcrr tiluity 'l icr I

Capital to llisk Wcightcd

Asscts

'l 
ie r I Capi(alto Ilisk
Wcighted Asscts

'l'0tal Capital to
I{rsk WciF,hlcd n ssc(s

Iicr I Cirpitirl to
Avcragc Asscts

l)cccrrrtrcr ll,20l6:
Cornrrxrn liluity'l icr I

(lapiral to llisk Wcighrcd

Asscts

l tcr I Capttal to l{isk

Wctghtcd Assc(s

IirtalCapital to

llisk Wcightcd Asscts

l'icr I Capital to
Avcragc Asscts

27.461 17.3f0,'/u

24.366 16863% 12,463

22,556 l5.6l0o/n '7.405 5.125"/o r0,ll5 7 (\X\t'A, 9..192 6 5([0],

I I.5t0 tt 000%,

25.478 16079% 9,1 il 5.750"/o I t,092 7 U)t',tv. 10,.t00 6 S(XIZ,

5 (XX)%

25,478 16079% 11,488 7.25Ut/n 13,469 8 500% 12,(t7l 8 OfiI%

14,657 9.2501t/o 16,638 l0.500rZo i5.t'146 10.000%

25.478 t00t5% 10,t76 4000% 10,176 4(NY)',Yo 12.720

22,556 15 (rl0'Zo 9,571 6.675Y, 12,282 ti 500'/o

8625% 15,172 10.500'Zo 14,450 10000%

22.556 9 218"/o 4 000v. 9,788 4 OOU'/, lz.2l4 5 000%9,788
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Note l4 - COMPENSATORY STOCK OPTION PLAN

'I'he Cornpany has a stock option plan which includes both irrcerrtive stock options and
rrorrqualilied stock options. The plan is for key employees designated by the Board on or befbre each
plan year begirrs. Under the Plarr the exercise price of eaclr option equals tlre market plice of the
Company's stock on the date of grant as deternrined by the Board's cornpensation comnrittee. Options
tnay be exercised at 20%o per year of service after tlre grant date.

The following table illustrates a sumnrary of outstarrding optiorrs at Decenrber 31,2017 and
2016

SHARES

WEIGHTI]D
AVERAGE
EXERCISE

PRICE TOTAL

Outstandirrg January l, 2016

Clanted

Exercised

Ilet ired

OUTSTANDINC,
DECEMBER 3I,2016

Ganted
Exercised

OUTS'|ANDING,
DECEMBER 31,2017

92.000

33.000

(2e.000)

(6.800)

23,925

20,000

22,938

24,088

22,781

25,000

23,48t

2,201,100

660,000

(66s,200)

( r 63,800)

89.200

23.000

(20.600)

2,032,100

575,000

(483,700)

91.600 23,t8t 2,123,400

At Decenrber 3 l, 2017, all eligible options under the plan were exercised

'Ihe Conrpany applies FASB ASC 718 Compensalion - Slock Compensation in accountirrg for
the stock option plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for the incentive stock
options because the option price was equalto tair value at date of grant. Compensation expense for the
norrqualified stock options is based on the difference between fair rnarket at the date olexercise and
the arnount the employee must pay to acquire the stock. For the year ended December 31, 2017, tlre
Conrpany recognized no compensation expense for nonqualified stock options. F-or the year ended
Decenrber 31,2016, the Company recognized $22,000 in compensation expense for nonqualiljed stock
optiorrs.
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Notc l5 - IlMI'}t-OYllE IIBNEITIT PLANS

'l-lte Conrpany sponsors a defined c<lntribution savirrgs plan thal covers all ernployees.
l)articipants can contlibute a percentage of their compensation as perrritted by the lnte rnal l{evenue
Code Section 401(k). The Company will match 100% of the employee's contribution up to 302 of the
crnploycc's conrpensation arrd an additional 500% on tlre next 2%o of the employee's cornpensation. 'l'he

Cornparry's contributions for both 2017 and 2016 anrounted to $132,000.

Notc l6 - I{ELATED PAIITY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordiuary course ol'business, the Company makes loans to officers, directors and principal
slockholders. 'l'lrese loans are made on substantially the same tenns, includirrg interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailirrg at the time for cornparable transactions with other persons. Such loans
arrrotrntcd to $14,428,826and $9,387,468 at Decernber3l,20l7 arrd 2016, respectively.

Dcposits ll'orl lelated parties held by lhe Barrk at December 31,2017 and 2016 arnounted to
$33,41 1,446 and $25,085,249, respectively.

Nolc l7 - lrAll{ VALUII OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

-f-lre 
Cornpany follows the provisions of the ASC, Faz' Vctlue Measuremenls crnd Disclosures.

'l'hc disclosures required about fair value measuremerrts include, arnong other things, (l) lhe anrounts
arrd rcasorrs lor certain significant transfers among the three hieralchy levels of inpLrts; (2) the gloss,

rather than nct, basis for certain Level 3 rollfolward infornration; (3) use of a "class" basis rather tlrarr

a rnajor category basis for assets and liabilities; and (4) valuation techniques atrd inputs used to estimate
l-evel 2 and Level 3 fair value n-leasurements. The ASC deflnes fair value as the exchange price that
woulcl bc reccivcd lbr an asset or paid to transfer a liability in tlre principal or most advantagcous market
lor thc assct or liability in an orderly transaction between nrarket participants on the measurcmerrt date.

'l-he ASC guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs lhat prioritize the

inputs used in valuatiorr rrrethodology in the following three levels:

l-evel I - Quoted plices in active nrarkets for identical assets or liabilities that tlre reporting
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Levcl 2 - Observable inputs other than Level l, irrcluding quoted priccs for sirnilar assets or
liabilities, quoted prices irr less active r.rrarkets, or other observablc inpuls tltat can be

corroborated by observable market data.

Lcvcl 3 - Unobservable inputs supported by little or rro rnarket activity lbr llnarrcial inslnrrncnts
whose value is determined usiug pricirrg nrodels, discounted caslr flow rnetlrodologies, or
sirnilar techniques, as well as irrstruments for whiclr the determination ol flair value requires

sigrrilicant nralragenlerrl judgment or estinration.

-fhe Company uses l'air value to measure certain assets and liabilities on a recurrittg basis when

thir value is the prirlary measule of accounting. This is done primarily for available-for-salc securities.

I;air value is used olt a nollrecurling basis to lreasul'e certain assets when applying lower of cost or
nrarkcrt accounting or wlren adjusting carlying values, such as inrpaired loans and otlter real estate

rxvnccl. Irair value is also used when evaluating impairr-nent on ceflain assets, irtcluding helcl-to-

rnaturity and available-for-sale securities, goodwill, core deposits attd other intangibles, long-lived
asscts, and for disclosures of certain financial instruments.

'l'ltere were tto transfers among the three hierarchy levels of ittpttts.

a

a

a
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Notc l7 - FAll{ VA[.UE OF FINnNCIAL INSTRUMEN1'S - (Contirruation)

A description of tlte valuation methodologies used lor instrunrents nreasured at lairvalue on a
rccurrirrg basis, as well as the general classification of such instrulnents put'suant to tlte valuatiorr
hicralclry, is sct Iortlr below.

Sccuritics Availablc for Sale

Whcrc qLroted prices are available in an aclive market, sectrrities are classified within Level I

ol'the valuation hiclarclry. Level I securities would include actively-tradecl governrnent borrds, suclr
as ccrtain [.]nited States 'l-reasury and other United Stales governnrent arrd agency securities and
cxchattgc-traded equities. lf quoted nrarket prices are not available, lhen lair values are estirnated by
rusing lrricirrg nroclels, quoted plices olsecurities with sinrilar characleristics, or discounlcd caslr flows.
[.cvel 2 seculities generally include cefiain United States governrnent and agency securities, colpolatc
dcbt sccurities, and cerlain derivatives. ln ceftain cases, wlrere there is Iirnited activity or less

lransparency around inputs to the valuation, securities are classified witlrin Level 3 ol'tlre valuatiort
hicrarchy.

'l-hc lbllowing table sunrrnarizes assets rrreasured at lair value by class on a recurring basis as

rcportccl on the consolidated balance sheets as olDecenrber 3l,20ll arrd 2016, segregated by level
rvithirr (he fair value rneasurernent hierarchy:

Asscts Mcasurctl at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

FA l R VA LUE M LIA SIJREM IIN'IS USINC

QUOTET) PRrCE

IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR

IDENI'ICAL
ASSETS

LEVlll- I T'O',t'n 1,

Decerrrber 3l ,2017
Mun icipal Bonds

Other'

1'O1'A I- 109,342, 133 109,342,133

SICNI}'ICANl'
o]'t iliR

OBSERVN BI,IJ

INPTJ'IS

LEVTJL 2

t09,t87,r33
155,000

r09,r87,r33

t55,000

Decerrrber 3l,2Ol6
Municipal Bonds

Other

109,r r8,369

I ss,000

109, I I 8,3(r9

t55,000

109,273,369 109,273,3691'OTAL
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Note l7 - FAllt VALUE OIr FINANCIAL lNSTRUMENTS - (Contirruatiorr)

Asscts Mcasuretl at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments rneasured at lair value on a
trotrrecurrittg basis, as well as the general classificatiorr of such instrurnents pursuatrt to the valuation
hierarchy, is set lbrth below.

lmpaircd Loans

'l'lre specific reserves for collateral-dependent irnpaired loarrs are deternrined basecl on the lair
value ol'collateral ntethod in accordance with FASII ASC 310 Receivable.r. [Jnder the fair value ol'
collatcral metlrod, the specific reserve is equal to the difference betweerr the carrying value of tlre loan
arrd tlrc Iair value ol'the collateral less estimated selling costs. When a specific reserve is required for
arr intpaired loan, lhe inrpaired loan is esserrtially measured at fair value. Tlre Iair value of collateral
r.vas clclerrr-riued based on appraisals, witlr further adjustments made to the appraised values due to
various litctors, including the age of tlre appraisal, age of comparables included in the appraisal and
krtown changes in the market and in the collateral. The resulting fair value nreasurenlerrt is disclosed in
tltc nont'ecurring hierarchy table. Where adjustments made to appraisals are based on assurnptiorrs rrot
observable irt the nrarketplace and where estinrates of fair values used for otlrer collateral supporting
cornnrcrcial loarrs are based on assunrptions not obseryable in the marketplace, such valuatiorrs have
bccrr classil'ied as [,evel 3.

Other Ilcal Estate Owned

Other real estate owned, upon initial recognition, is nreasured and reported at lhir value less

cstinratcd costs of disposal though a charge-off to the allowance lbr loan losses based upon tlre lair
value of tlre othcr realestate acquired. The fair value of otlrer real estate owned is estinrated based on
appraisals with further adjustrncnts made to the appraised values due to various factors, including age

ol'the appraisal, age of conrparables irrcluded in the appraisaland known changes in the rnarket and orr

tlre collateral. Because the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of other real estate owned are

not observable in the marketplace, such valuations have been classified as Level3.

l:A l ll VA Ltll i M llA SUILl lM IIN'IS tiSINC

QUOt'Dt) t'RtCti
IN AC'I'IVIJ

MAII.KIJ'I'S FOII
IDT.N'I'ICAI-

ASSIJI'S
l.tivtlt.l t.o'l'AL

I)cccrnbcr'31,2017

SI(NIIIICAN'I'
o'r'r lL)(

ousERVAtlLE
tNPtil's
LUVI:.|,2

SICNII:ICAN'I'
UNOBSI]IVAllt.u

tNl,t.1'l's

LEVIiI,3

Irnpairccl loans
Other l{cal listate

Owned

.I'O'I'AI,

l)cccrnbcr3l,2016

Irrrpaircd Irlarrs
Othcr l{cal l'^state

()wncd

1,601t,714 1,608,714

3l 3l 850

1,640,5(t4 1,640,564

t,640,379 l,(t40,379

795. I 38 795,138

2,435,517 2.435,517't'o'l'n L

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 3t)



Note l8 - PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Chafter Bancshares, Inc. (Parerrt Company only) at
December 3 l, 201 7 and 2016 is as follows:

Balance Slreet:

DI]CEMBER 3I
2017 20t6

ASSETS

Cash

I nvestment in Subsidiaries

Dividends Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

633,840

28,471,264

t.450.000

143,613

24,350,461

1.086.244

30,555,104 25,580,319

LIABILITIES AND
STocKHOLDERS' EQUTTY

Liabilities-

Dividends Payable

Stockholders' Equity:

Cornrnon Stock

Surplus

Retained Earnirrgs

Accumulated Other Comprehensive lncome

Total Stockholders Equity

2,077,093

I ,8 19,35 I

fi,721,802

r r,943,83 I

2,993,027

1,090,238

1,794,631

n,252,822

9,648,620

1,794,007

28,478,011 24,490,080

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
sTocKHoLDERS' EQUTTY 30,555,104 25,580,318

'l'he Statement ol'Income for the year ended Decenrber 3l ,2017 and 201 6 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I

2017 2016

lncome -

Equity Earning from Subsidiaries 7,807,846 7,676,989

Expenses:

Cornpensation Expense

Administrative Expe nse

7,807,84(t 7.648.788

28,200

I

NE'f INCOME
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Note l8 - PAI{ENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - (Corrtinuation)

I'he Staternent of Cash Flows forthe year ended December 31,2017 and 2016 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBEII3I
2017 2016

Cash Flows liorn Operating Activities:

Net lncorme

Adjustments to Reconcile Net lncome to Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:

Equity in Earnings of Subskliaries

Dividends Received from Subsidiaries

Stock Compensation Expense

Net Change in-

Dividend Receivable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

7,807,846 7,648,788

(363,757) l,l 13,756

4,522,306 4,027,999

(7,807,846)

4,886,063

(7,676,999)

2,920,444

22,000

Cash Flows tiorn Financing Activities:

Proceeds fi'orn Sale of Common Stock

Dividends Paid

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Increase in Cash

Cash, Begirrning of Year

CASH, END OF YEAR

(4,032,090) (3,888,040)

490,226 139,959

143,614 3,655

633,840 143,614

493,700

(4,525,790)

665,200

(4,553,240)
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CER-l I Ir I l' l) PU BI lC ACCOTJN-tA N-l-S
COLLIER, JOHNSON e wooDs, P.C.

555 N. Carancahua, Suite 1000
Corpus Christi, Texas 78401-0839

361-884-9347 . Fax 3(t1.-884-9422
www.cjw-cpa.com

IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Marclr 2,2018

To the Board of Directors
Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries
Corpus Christi, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Charler Bancshares, Inc., alrd
Subsidiaries (a'I'exas Corporatiott), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 3l ,2011
and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and tlre related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemetrt is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated finarrcial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica; this
includes the desigtt, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fi'aud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statenlents based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gerrerally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are fi'ee from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in tlre consolidated financial'statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgnrent, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statenrents, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures tlrat
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the el'fectiveness of
the Cornpany's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by nranagenlent, as well as evaluating the overall presentatiott of tlre consolidated firrancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all nraterial
respccts, tlre f inancial position of Charter Bancslrares, lnc., and Subsidiaries as of Decenrber 3 I , 2017 and20l6,
arrd the consolidated results of their operations, and consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with accounting principles gerrerally accepted in the United States of America.

bQ.Pr@", 5 0J*Jp
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CIIARTER BANCSIIARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DATED BALANCE S}I EETS

20t7
ASSETS

DECBMBBR 3I
20t 6

Cash and Due fi'onr Banks

Available-for-Sale Securities at Fair Value (Notes 2 and 17)

Loans, Net of Allowance for Loarr Losses of $2,204,438
in 2017 and $2,125,113 in 2016 (Note 3)

Ilanking Prenrises and Equipnrent, Net (Note 4)

Accruecl Intcrest Receivable

Federal Horue Loarr Bank Stock (Note 5)

Foreclosed Assets (Note 6)
Other Assets

1-O]'AL ASSETS

6,289,55 t

t09,342,133

135,762,747

3,740,253

|,0s4,706
99,000

3 r,850

149,174

6,240,064

t09,273,369

t2t,t 19,173

3,9t 3,349

991,613

538,700

795, I 38

t 33,563

256,469,414 243,004,969

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERSI EQUITY

Dcposits:

Non interest-bearing

lnleresl-bearing (Note 7)

Total Deposits

Short-'l'errn Bot'rowed Funds (Note 8)

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Dividends Payable

Total Liabilities

C'onrnitnrents and Contingencies (Note I I and l2)

Slockholders'Equity:

Conrnron Stock $ 1,200 Par Value, 2,000 Shares Authorized
1,5 16. 126 and 1,495.526 Shares lssued and Outstanding

in2Ol7 and 20 16, Respectively

Surplus

Relaincd llarnings (Note 9)

Accurnulatcd Other Conrprehensive lnconre

Total Stockholders' Equity

TOI'AL LIABII-ITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

28,478,01t 24 490,080

256,469,414 243,004,969

t00,039,944

I 18,179,194

93,846,901

109,734,782

218,2 r9, | 38

6,325,000

1,370,t72
2,077,093

203,58 t,683

12,975,000

867,968

r,090,238

227,99t,403

l,819,35 r

|,721,802
I t,943,81I
2,993,027

2l 8,5 t4,889

1,794,631

1t,252,822

9,648,620

1,794,007

Sce Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CHARTER BANCSHARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEAR ENDBD DECBMBEII 3I,
2017 2016

I1,468,287 10,784,714

Inlercst lnconre;

Loans, Including Fees

Dcbt Seculities:
'l'axable

'l'ax-exeurpt

Irrterest on Federal Funds Sold
'lotal lrrterest Inconre

lrrlerest lixpense:

Irrtercst on Deposits

Intelcst on Borrowed l"-unds

Total Interest Expense

Nel lntcrest lncorne

lncrease in Provision for Loan l-osses (Note 3)

Net Inlerest lncorne After Provision

tbr Loan L,osses

Nonirrterest lnconre:

Service Fees

Othcr Operating Incorne

Gairr on Salc of Securities

Gain (l-oss) on Foreclosed Assets (Note 6)
'I'otal N oni rrterest I ncor.ne

Nonirrtcrest Expenses:

Salaries and Ernployee Benefits

Occupancy arrtl Equipment, Net of Rent Incorne

of 5292,496 in 2017 and $32 1,7 46 in 2016

Data Processing

General and Adrnirristrative

Total Nonirrterest Expenses

NT]'f INCOME

15,526

3,220,996

75,466

19,594

4,029,791

6,820

14,780,275

348,828

72 86s

421,693

14,840,91 9

33 1,33 I

55,586

386,911

14,358,582

200,000

14,454,002

950,000

l4,l 58,582

I ,331 ,717
562,095

306,805

46,120

13,504,002

1,268,028

561,552

846.886

(1,834)

2,246,737

6,091,066

680,414

391 ,035

1,434,958

2,668,632

5,90s,s 18

697,960

353, I 59

1,567,209

8,597,473 9,523,946

7,807,846 7,648,788

Sec Nolcs to Corrsolidatecl Financial Statements
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CHARTER BANCSIIARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLI DA'I'ED STATBM ENTS OF COM PREH ENSIVE I NCOM Ii

Nct lncorrtc

Avai lablc-lor'-Salc Sccuritics:

[{cclassilicatiorr Adjustrncnt lbr Net Gain Included in Net Income
(lltangc irr Nct Urrrcalizcd Cain on

Availablc-lirr-Salc Sccuritics
'lirtal Availablc-lirrSale Sccurilics

,I'O 
I'N I, ()'I'III;R COMI'I(IJIIIJNSIVI] INCOMD

COMMON
STOCK

YEAII ENDED DECEMBER 3I,
2017 2016

7,807.846 7,648,788

306,805 846,886

(4,710,744)892,215

r, r99,020 (3,{163,8s 8)

3,784,9309,00(r,tl(r6

CONSOLIDATED STATBMENTS OF CIIANGES IN S'TOCKHOLDERS' EOUITY

YEAII ENDED DECEMBER 3I. 20I7 AND 20I6

IIETAINED
EARNINGS

OTIIER
COMPREIIENSIVE

INCOME

llalancc. I)cccrrbcr 3 l. 2015

Nct lnconrc
()tlrcr ('orrtprclrcrrsivc lrtcorrrc

l)ividcnds
Stock Ilascd Cornpcnsation llccognizcd in

I iarrr irrgs

Stock Optiorrs l:)xcrciscd lbr'29 Slralcs

lJalancc, l)cccrnbcr 3 l, 20 I 6

Ncl lncorrtc

Otlrcr Oornplclrcnsivc Incolnc:

I)ividcrrds

Stock Options lixclciscd lbr 20.6 Sharcs

1,794,63 r I 1,252,822 9,648,620

7,807,846

1,7e4.007 24,490.080

'1,807,846

r, r99,020

(5,5 r2,635)

493,700

SURPLUS .TO'TAL

1,7s9,{t3l t0,600,422 5,443,522 5,657,865 23,46t,640

7,648,788 7,648,7tt8

(3,863.858)

(3,443,(r90)

(3,tt(r3,858)

(3,443,690)

34,800

22,000

630,400

22,000

6(r5,200

1, t99,020
(5,5 r 2,615)

24,720 468,980

l]Al,nNcli. l)lrcliMllllR 31,2017 1.819,351 11,721,802 11,943,{13l 2,993,02'7 28,478,011

Scc Notcs to Corrsolitlatctl lf inarrcial Statcnrcnts
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CHARTER BANCSHARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR BNDRD DBCI'MRER 3I,
2017 20t6

7,807,846 7,64tt,788

Caslr lrlows lionr Opclating Activities:
Nct lncontc

Adiustnrcrrls to l{cconcilc Nct Incorne to Net

Cash l)roviclcd by Opcrating Activitics:
I)cplcciation
I)r'ovisiorr lirr I-oan l,osscs

Wrilc tlorvn o['Othcr llcal [.]state

Stock Conrpcrrsalion llxporse
l)rcmiunr Amoltization Nct ol Discourrt Accretion

on Sccuritics
(iain orr Sccuritics
(Gain) l.oss on Salc ol' l"orccloscd Asscts

Nct Clrarrgc in:

Accruc:d I ntcrcst l{ccci vable

Othcr Asscts

Accrucd l')xpcnses and Othe l Liabilitics
Nct Claslr l)rovidcd by Opcrating Activities

Caslr l:lorvs liorn Invcsting Activitics:
l.orrrr Originations and l)rirrcipal Collcctions, Nct

Activity in Availablcr-lol-Salc Seculitics:

Maturitics, I)rcpaynrcnts and Calls

Salcs

l)urchascs

l)urclrasc ol'lrcde:ral I lonre l,oan llank Stock

Sirlc ol'ljcclclal llonrc l,oan llank Stock

l)ulchasc ol' llank l)rcnriscs and [iquipnrent

l)r'occccls liorn Salc ol' l.'orccloscd Asscts

Nct Clash l)rovidcd (tJsed) by Invcsling Activitir's

Cash Irlorvs lionr l;inancing Activities:
Nct lnc:r'casc (l)ccrcasc) in Noninteresl Bearing Deposits

Ncl lncrcasc (l)cclcasc) in Intclcst llcaring l)cposits

Nct lncrcasc (Dcclcasc) in l]orrorved l;unds

l'roccccls lioru lssuancc ol'Conrmon Stock

I)ividcnds l'aid

Nct Cash l)rovidcd (tJsed) by lrinancing Activities

Irrclcase (I)cclcasc) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Caslr antl Caslr l')quivalcnts, Bcginning ol-Year

cn slr ANr) cASlt l,Qutvn LDNl's, END oF YBAII

Supplcrncntary L-'ash l;low I n lbrnration :

lrrlclcst I'aid on l)cposits and Bolrowcd Funds

Norrcash lnvcsting and lrinancing Activitics:
l;urcclosulc ol' Othcr llcal [istalc

l{cclassillcation Acliustnrcnt lbr Nct Gain lncluded in Nct lncome and

Changc in [Jnrcalizcd Gain (l.oss) on Availablc-lbr-Salc Securities

( I 0,282.052) 20, r s8, r 92

(25,s37,609)

(4,8t4.642)

6,650,000

665,200

(4,553,24 r )

3,955.375 (27,590,292)

49.487 (2,070,9s7)

8,3 r 1,0216,240,064

6,289,551 6,240.064

4 t r.190 375,7 t3

900,263 1,248,2st

t,199,020 (1,863.858)

222,956

200.000

(1,925.2t2)
(306,805)

(46. r 20)

(63,093 )

(15.(rll)
502,203

237,468

950.000

20.208

22,000

(2,602,491)

(846,886)

7.tt34

(56,498)

(3 r.354)

12,074

6,376.t64 5,3(rl.l43

(15,'743,837) (tt,l14,226)

40,t02,273
I1,L79.444

(48,6 r9,443)

(804.200)

1,243.900

(4e,860)

1,709.67 t

44,924.307

28,221,t23
(41,82(t,228)

(437,600)

(34.25s)

425,071

6, I 93.043

8,444.412

((r,650.000)

493,700

(4,525,780)

Scc Notcs to Consolitlatcd Financial Statcn.rents
Chafter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 6



CI IARTEI{ BANCSI'IARES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINA IAI, T

DECEMBER 3I 2017 AND 2016

Note I - SUMMARY Ol.- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

-l'lte accounting and reporting practices of Charter Baucshares, Inc. (Parent Company) arrd its
wholly owrted subsidiaries (collectively referred to as Company) conlorm to accounting principles
generally accepted irr the United States of Anrerica and to general practice within the bankirrg industry.
'l'he lbllowing is a description of the nrore significant policies.

l)rinciplcs of Consolidation

'l'he consolidated t'inancial statements include tlre accourrls of Charter Bancshares, lrrc. and its
rvholly owtted subsidiary Charter Bank (Barrk). The Bank owns 100% of Norlh arrd South Padre L.l,.C.
rt'hich owtts 7.1776% interest in a partnerslrip which owns land on South Padre Island. Allsignificant
itttercotnpany transactions and balances lrave been eliminated in consolidation.

Dnte of Managcment's Review

Subseclucrtt events werc evaluated through March 2, 2018 which is the date the llnancial
slalcrnenls rvere available to be issued.

Naturc of Operations

'fhe Company provides a variety of flnancial services to individuals and corporale custorners

through tlrree branches in Corpus Chlisti and Rockport, Texas. The econonty olNueces County, the
Cornparry's principal nrarket area, is diversified and consists of military, agricultural, energy, liglrt
induslry, and service industry sectors. The Company's prinrary source ol revenue is loans to
cornnrercial errtities and individuals within its principal nrarket area.

Usc ot'Estirnates

In preparing of financial statenrents in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, rnanagement is required to rnake estimates and assunrptiorrs that alfect the retrlorted arnounts
oI asscts and liabilities as of the date of tlre balance sheet and the reported anrounts ol'rcveuues and

cxpcnses during the reporting period. Actual results could dift-er fi'om those estinrates. Material
cstirnates that are particularly susceptible to sigrrificant change in the near terrrr relate to the
clcleunination ol'the allowance for loan losses and fair values of investmerrts securities.

Signilicant Group Concentrations of Credit Ilisk

Most of the Conrpany's activities are with customers located in the South l'exas region. Note
2 discusscs the types of securities in whiclr the Company invests, Note 3 discusses the types o1'lending
irr r,vhich tlre Conrpany engages. Although the Bank has a diversilled loan portfblio, a substantial
portiorr of its debtors' ability to lronor their contracts is dependent upott the oil and gas and cotnnrercial
lcal eslate busirress ecouonric sectors.

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 7



Nolc I * SUMMARY OIr SIGNIFICANI- ACCOI.JNTING POLICIES - (Continuation)

Cash antl Cash Equivalents

For tlte purposes olthe statenrent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalerrts irrclude caslr arrd
balances due fi'otn banks arrd federal funds sold, all of which mature witlrin rrirrety days.

Sccuritics

Securities tlrat tnay be sold itr response to, or in anticipation of, changes in intcrest. rates arrd
t'esulting prepaytnent risk, or other factors, are classified as available-for-sale arrd carried at fair value,
witlt uttrealized gairrs and losses excluded from earnings and reporled in other cornprehelrsive inconre.
I)urchase prenriunrs and discounts are recogrrized in interest income using the irrtelest method over the
tclnrs ol'the securities. Cains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the tracle date and are
detcrrnitred using the specific identification nrethod. The Conrpany is an S colporation and does not
adjusl unrealizcd gains and losses for taxes.

In cotupliance witlr the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accor.rrrting Standarcls
Codillca(iort (ASC) 320- l0 lnveslments - Debt Securities accounting guidance relaled to the recognition
and presentation ol'other-than-temporary impairment, declines irr fair valuc of available-for-sale
securities that are deenred to be other-than-tenrporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. 'l'lre

Cornpany recognizes an impainlent loss when the impairment is deenred otlrer than tenlporaly evcn if
a dccisiorr to scll has not been nrade. ln deternrining wlrether otlrer-than-tenrporary irnpairrnent exisls,
rnanagcnlcnt considers nrany factors, including: (l) the lerrgth of tirne and the extent to which the flair

value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-terrl prospects of the issuer', and (3)
thc intcnt ancl ability of the Comparry to retairr its investnrerrt in the issuer for a period ol'tirne sufficient
lo allow lbr any anticipated recovery in lair value.

Loans

'l-he Corlpany grants mortgage, commercial and cousurner loans to custotners. A substantial

llortion ol'these loans is to custorners in South Texas. The ability of the Company's debtors to honor
tlreir conlracts is deperrdent upon the economic conditiorrs in this area.

'['lre Cornpany lras lending policies and procedures in place to grant loans to borrowers only
alter a lirll evaluation of the credit history and repayment abilities of the borrowcr. Cornnrercial and

resiclcntial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards that evaluate caslr f'low and ltrir value
olthc collateral. "l'lre collectibility of real estate loans may be adversely affectcd by conditiorrs in lhe
lcal cslate rnarkets or the gerreral econonry. Management mortitors and evaluates rcal estate loans based
on collateral, gcography, and risk criteria.

Conrrnercial loans are urrderwritten after evaluating and undclstanding the borrower's ability
lo opcrate prolilably. Such evaluations involve reviews of historical and cash flow projections and

valuations ol'collateral provided by tlre borrower. Most comnrercial loans are secured by tlre assets

beirrg linarrcecl or other available business assets and frequently include a personal guarantee by the

prirrcipal owncrs; however, sorne comnrercial loans may be made orl an unsecured basis. 'l-he

repayrnent olcomrnercial loans is subslanlially dependent on the ability of borrowet's to operate their
busincsses prolitably and collect anrounts due fi'onr their custonters.

Consumer loarrs are oliginated aller evaluation of the credit history ancl repayntcnt ability of
the bon'orver based or.r current personal income. 1-he repayntent of consunrer loans can be adversely
aflbclcd by ecouonric corrditions and other f'actors that irnpact the borrower's iltcotne.

Charter Bancslrares, lnc. and Subsidiaries 8



Note I - SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUN'IING POLICIES - (Continuation)

l-oans that nranagement has tlre intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or maturity
ale repotled at their outstanding urrpaid principal balances ad.iusted for unearned income, the allowance
lor loarr losses, uneartred interest and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans and any prerniums
or discounts ott purchased loans. lnterest income is accrued on the urrpaid principal balance. Loan
origination f'ees, net of certairt direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustrnent of
the rclaled loan yield using the straight-line method, which management believes is not materially
clill'elerrt l}om the interest rrrethod. 'l-he accrual of interest on real estate and conrnrercial loans is
cliscotttinued at the time the loan is 90 days clelinquent unless the credit is well secured and in process
of collcction. ln all cases, loans are placed on nonaccnral status or clrarged o[f at an earlier date if
collection of principalor interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged ofT is
rcversccl against interest irrconre. Tlre interest on these loarrs is accounted 1'or ou tlre cash-basis or cost-
rccovcry mcthod, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returrred to accrual status when all
thc principal and interest amounts contlactually due are brought current and lirture payrnents are

rcasonably assured.

A loan is considered inrpaired when, based on curretlt information and events, it is probable that
tlte Conrpany will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest wherr due, according
to llte cotttractual ternrs of the loan agreenrent. Factors considered by nranagement irr determining
irnpairnrent include payrnent status, collateralvalue, and the probability of collecting sclredulcd principal
ancl irrterest payrnents wlren due. Loans that experience irrsignificant paynlent delays and payment
shortlirlls generally are not classifled as irnpaired. Management detertnines the sigrrilicance of payrnent
dclays arrd payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, takirrg into consideration all circumstances
surrounding the loan and the borrower, includirrg the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower's prior payrnerrt record, and the aurount of shortfall irr relation to the principal and irrterest owed.
Irnpairrnent is rneasured on a loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected firture cash t'lows
discourrtcd at the loan's eflective interest rate, the loan's obtainable nrarket price, or lhe tair value of the
collatclal, if the loan is collateral-dependent.

Loans are fully or partially chalged down to the fair value of the collateral securing tlre loarr

rvlren rnanagenrent deternrines the asset to be uncollectible, repayment is deerned to be delayed or
doubtlul beyond reasonable time fi'anres, the borrower has cleclared banknrptcy, or the loarr is past due
lirr arr unleasorrable tirne period. Such charge-offs are charged against tlre allowance lbr loan losses.
l{ecovcries ol'previous loarr charge-offs are credited to the allowance for loarr losscs only when the
Cornpany reccives cash or other collateral in repayrrent of the loan.

In situations rclatecl to a borrorver's financial difficulties, the Cornpany may grant a concessiorr
l<l thc borrower lor otlrer than an insigrrificant period of time that would ttot otlrerwise be considered.
In such instances, the loan will be classilled as a troubled debt restructuring. These concessions ntay

inclLrdc irrterest rate reductions, payment forbearance, or other actiotrs intended to ntininrize the

ccononric loss and avoid foreclosure of the collateral. In cases wlrere borrowers are granted new tet'nts

that provide lbr a leduction oleither interest or principal, the Company nleasures an intpairmettt loss

on the restructuring, as noted above lbr impaired loans.

Charter Bancshares, Inc. attd Subsidiaries 9



Notc I - SUMMn ItY OF SIGNIFICANT'ACCOUN'|ING POI-IClES - (Continuation)

Allowance for Loan Losses

'l-he Cornpany nraintains an allorvance for loan losses as a rcserve established thlough a

provisiorr for possible loan losses charged to expense, which represents managernent's best cstirnate of
probable losses that have been incurred within the existing porlfolio of loarrs. 'l'he allowarrce, in the
o1-rinion ol'rranagenrent, is necessaly to reserve for estinrated loan losses attd risks inltererrt in the loarr
poltfolio. 'l-he Comparry's nretlrodology fbr the allowance for loan losses includes allowance
allocatiorrs calculated in accordance with ASC 310 Receivubles, and nSC 450 Contingencies.
Accordingly, tlre metlrodology is based on historical loss experience by type of credit and intemalrisk
graclc, spccific hornogeneous risk pools, and specific loss allocations, with adjustments for current
cvcnls arrd corrditiorrs,

'l'he Cornpany's process for deterrrrirrirrg the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses
is clesigned to account l'or credit deterioratiou as it occuls. Factors that influence the dcterrninatiorr
inclucle quantifiable aspects, such as loan volunre, loarr concentrations, and loan quality trerrcls,

inclucling trends in norraccrual, past-due, and classified loans; currerrt period loan chargc-ofl'st ancl

rccoverics. 'l'he deterrnination also includes qualitative aspects, such as changes in local, regional, or
national ecouornies or rnarkets, and other factors. Such qualitative faclors are highly^judgrncntal and
rccluire constant refinement. The Cornpany has an internal loan review function, the objective of which
is to idcntify potential problerl loarrs, properly classify loans by risk grade, and assist serrior
rnallaBemcnt irr rnaintairring an adequalc allowance for loan losses account by reviewing and refining
thc methoclology, as needed, based on changing circumstances.

'l'he Cornpany's allowance for loan losses consists prirnarily ol'two eletnents: (l) a specific
valuation allowance deterrnined in accordance with ASC based on probable losses on specific,
individual loarrs and (2) a general valuation allowarrce determined in accordance with ASC based on
historical loarr loss experience for pools of sirnilar loans, whiclr is then adjusted to rellect the irnpaot of
current trends arrd conditions.

While rnarragement uses the best information available to ntake its evaluatiott, luture additions
to lhc allowance could be requiled based on clranges in economic conditiorts. In addition, various
rcgulatory agencies, as an irrtegral part of their examination process, periodically review the Conrpany's

allou,ance lbr loan losses. Such agencies nray require the Conrpany to recognize additiotts to tlte
allorvance based on their.iudgnrents about information available to thetn at tlre tinre of their
exarnirral ion.

I,'orcclosctl Assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially
rccordcd at lair value, less estinrated cost to sell, at the date ol l'oreclosure, establishing a new cost

basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically perlormed by rnanagelllerrt and the assets

arc carricd at the lower of carryirrg arnount or fail value less cost to sell. Itevenue and expenses fi'oln

opcratiou and changcs in the valuation allowance are included in net expenses fronr lbreclosed assets.

Ilanking Premises and Equipment

l-and is carried at cost. Prenrises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated

dc'preciatiorr. Depreciation is provided over tlre estinrated useful lives of the respcctive assets on tlte
stlaiglrl-lirre and declining balance metltod.
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Notc I - SUMMn I{Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Corrtirruation)

Conrprchcnsive Income

Accouttting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses
bc inclucled itt net income. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses
orr available-fbr-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the shareholders'equity section
oItlrc balance sheet. Such items, along with net incorrle, are components of comprehensive iltcorne.

Fcdcral Income Taxes

'l'lre Conrpany, with the consent of their shaleholders, elected urrder the lntenral l{evcnue Codt:
lo be an S Corporatiou. In lieu of corporation incorne taxes, tlre sharelrolders ot'an S Corporation are
laxed on their proportionate share of the Conrpany's taxable inconre. Theretbre, rro provisiorr or liability
lor lrederal incorne taxes has been included in net incorne.

'l-he Cornpany files income tax returns in the U.S. Federaljurisdiction. The Company is no
longcr subject to U.S. Federal inconre tax examinations by tax authorities for years after 2013.

Stock Compcnsation Plans

'['lte Cornpany has a stock based compensation Plan more fully described in Note 14. Stock
cotnpettsaliott accor.rtttirtg guidance (FASB ASC 718 Contpensulion - Stock Compensation) requires
that tlre compensation cost related to share-based payment transactions be recognizecl in finarrcial
staterlrcnts. Cornpensation cost has been rneasured using the fair value of an award on the grant dates
ancl is recognizcd over the service period, which is usually the vesting period. Compensatiorr cost
rclatecl to lhe rron-vested portion of awards outstanding as of the transition date are based on the glant-
clate lhir value of those awards. The standard continues to allow the Conrparry to use the intrinsic value
rrrcllrocl, in which conrpensation cost is the excess, if any, of the markct plice ol-the stock at the grant
datc ovcl thc arnount an ernployee rnust pay to accluire the stock if the Company carulol rcasonably
estinrate firir value because it is not practicable fbr it to estimate the expected volatility ol'its share
pricc.

ILcvenuc llecognition

Irrterest inconre and expense is recognized on tlre accrual method based on the respective
orrtstanclirrg balances. Other revenue is recognized at the tinre the service is rendered or lransactions
occur.

Ncw Accounting Pronouncements

Irt Scpterlber 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accourrting
Slanclards Updatc (ASU) No.20l4-09, Revenue From Contt'ctcls u,itlt Custonters. ASU 2014-09
irnplcrnerrts a comrnon revenue standard that clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue. The core
prirrciple of ASU 2014-09 is that an entily should recognize revenue to depict the transfer ol'prornised
goods or serviccs to custonrers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the enlity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To achieve that core principle, an entily should
apply the fbllowirrg steps: (i) identify the contract(s) with a custotner, (ii) idcrrtily the perfbrtnance
obligalions irr the contract, (iii) determirre the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction price to tlre
pellbrrnance obligations in the contract, and (v) r'ecognize rever"rue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

pcllbrnrance obligation. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for nonpublic business entities in 2018.'Ihe
Conrpany is slill evaluating the potential inrpact of this new ASU ott its consolidated firtancial

slaternents.
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Notc I - SUMMARY OIr SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continuation)

Itt F-ebruary 2016, the FASB issued (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (l'opic 812) inlended to
intprove ['inarrcial reporting regarding leasing transactions. The new standard atfects all companies and
orgattizatiotrs that lease assets. 'l'he starrdard will require organizations to recognize on the statenlent
of llrrancial conditiorr the assets and liabilities for the rights arrd obligations created by those leases if
the lcase telrtrs are rlore than l2 nronths. The guidarrce also will require qualitative and qtrantitative
disclosures providirrg additional irrfornration about the amourrts recorded in thc financial
statenlcnts. 'fhe atuendtnents in this update are effective for fiscal years begirrning after Dccenrber 15,
2018, includirrg interim periods within those flscal years. T'he Cornpany is cvaluating lhe potential
impact ol-the anrendruent on the Company's financial statements.

In.lune 2016, the FASB issued (ASU) No.2016-13, Fittctncial Instrurnents Creclit Losses
(7-opic 32(t) intended to inrprove financial reporling by lequiring tirnelier recording of credit losses orr

loans attd other flnancial instrurnents held by finarrcial institutions and otlrer organizations.'lhe
stanclard rcquires an organization to nreasure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the
rcporting clate basecl on historical experience, cun'ent conditions and reasorrable and supportable
Ibrecasts. ["irrancial institutions and other organizations will now use fbrwarcl-lookiug inlbrrnatiorr to
better inlbrnr tlreir credit loss estinrates. The standard also requires enhanced disclosures to help
ittveslors arrd other f irrarrcial statement users better understand signilicarrt estirnates and judgrnents used
irr estinraling credit losses, as wellas the credit quality and underwriting standards of arr organization's
portlblio. 'flrese disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirernents tlrat providc additional
inlbrrnation about tlre amollnts recorded in tlre financial statenrents. Additionally, tlre standard anrends
the accounting fbr credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities and purchased financial assets witlr
credit clcterioration. The amendnrents in tlris update are effective for fiscal years begirrning after
Decernber 15,2020, includiug interim periods witlrin those fiscal years. All entities rlay adopt the
anrettdmettts in this update earlier as olthe fiscalyears begirrrring after Decenrber 15, 2019, including
irrterirn pcriods within those fiscal years. An entity will apply the amendmerrts in this update througlr a

curnulative-eff-ect adjustnrent to retained ealnirrgs as of the beginning of the first reportirrg period in
whiclr the guidance is cffective (tlrat is, a modified-r'etrospective approach). The Cornpany believes the
anrcrrdrncnts in this update will have an inrpact on the Conrpany's financial statements ancl is working
to evalua(e the signilicance of that impact.

'l'he FASB issucd (ASU) 2016-15, Statement of Cush Flows ('topic 230): Cla.rsificcttion of
Cerluirr Cosh Receipts and Cash l'a.ynrerls, whiclt tnade tlte {bllowing changes that may affect tlre
Contparty: ( I ) Debt Prepayrnent or Debt Extinguishment Costs: Cash paynrerrts lbr debt prcpaynrent or
debt extinguishnrent costs shoLrld be classified as cash flows for financing activities. 'fhc arnendments
in this ASIJ will be ef fective for entities other tlran public business entities for fiscal years beginning
afier Decernber 15, 2018. The Company does not expect tlre guidarrce to have a malerial inrpact on its
tlrancial stalenrents.
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Nole 2 - SECURI'flES

The amortized cost and fair values of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, as of
December 3 I , 201 7 and 2016 are as follows:

AMORTIZED
COS'T

CROSS

UNREALIZED

CAINS

CROSS

UNREALIZED

LOSSES

PAIR

VALUE

December 31,2017

Availab le-for-Sale Securities

Municipal Bonds

Other

TOTAL

Decenrber 31,2016

A vailab le-for-Sale Securities

Municipal Bonds

Other

I 06,349, I 06 3,162,7s3 169,726 1W,342,133

r06, I 94,106

t 55,000

3,162,753 169,726 109,t87,t33

t 55,000

t07,324,362

I 55,000

2,743,834 949,827 109, r r 8,369

155,000

TOTAL 107,479,362 2,743,834 949,827 109,273,369

Asof December3l,2017 and20l6securitieswithafairvalueof$1,375,377and$1,297,947,
respectively, wete pledged to secure public funds and for other purposes required or permitted by law.
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Notc 2 - SITCURII'lES - (Continuatiorr)

'l'he followirrg table shows the rnaturity distribution of the security portfolio at Decenrber'31,
20t7

AVAI t.AI]LE- I.-O R- S ALE
SECUIIIl'IES

AMOITl'IZI]D
COS'I

IIAIR

VALUE

Due ll'onr One Year to Five Years

Due l)'onr F ive to 'l'en Years

Over''l'en Years
'l-otal

3'7,483,222

60,212,405

8,648,479

39,228,535

61,556,213

[],5 52,385

t06,344,106 I 09,337, I 33

No Statcd Maturity Date 5,000 5,000

'IO1'AL 106349,106 109342,8

I"or thc year ended December 31,2017, proceeds fi'om sales of securitics availablc-lbr-sale
anrounted to $11,879,444 and gross realized gains amounted to $306,805. lror thc year ended
Decetttbcr 31,2016, proceeds frorn sales of securities available-for-sale arnounted to $28,221,123 arrd

gross realized gains anrounted to $846,886.

Irtlirrrnation;:ertairrirrg to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31,2017 and
201 6 aggregatcd by investnrent category, nurlber of issues and lengtlr of tirne tlrat individual seculities
have becrr in a continuous loss position, follows:

I,TJSS'I'I IAN I2 MON'II IS OVIiI{ I2 MON'I'IIS
CITOSS

uNlltiA Ltztil)
I,OSSI]S

ITAIII.

VN I-LJI]

GII.OSS

L.tNI{IIAl.lZH)
I,OSSIiS

Irn ll(
vAt.Uti

'r'o't'n t.
I.JNI{IiA I,I7,II)

I{)SSIiS
l)cccrrrbcr 3l,2Ol7

Municiyral llonds 167,389 15,663,566 2,337 9(r7,0(r I 169,726

l)cccrnbcrr 31, 2016

Municipal llonds 949,827 42,332,309 949,827

Managernent evaluatcs securities for otlrer-than{enrporary irnpairrnenl at least on a quarterly
basis, and rnore lrequently when econonric or market concerns wan'ant such evaluation. Marragernent

has thc ability arrd irrtent to hold the securities for a period of tirrre sufficicnt lbr a recovery of'cost. The
runrcalizcd losscs are largely due to incleases in rnarket irtterest rates over yields available at tlte tinre
lhe unclerlying securities were purchased. The fair value is expected to recover as the bonds approach

thcir rnalurily date ol repricing date or il'nrarket yields for such inveslments declinc. Managcnrent does

not lrclievc any ol the securities are irnpaired due to reasons of credit quality. Accordingly, as of
I)eccrnbcr 31,2017, nranagernent believes the inrpairlxents detailed in the table above are temporary
and no irnpairnrerrl loss has been realized in the Conrpany's consolidated incotne stalenrent.
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Note 3 - LOANS

Loans, as of December 3 I , 2017 and 20 I 6, corrsisted of the following:

2017 2016

Cornrnercial

Comrnercial Real Estate

Construction and Land Developnrent

Ilesidential Real Estate

Consumer

TotalLoans

Less:

Allowance for Loan Losses

Urrearned l-oan Fees

NET LOANS

Loans at Fixed lnterest Rates

Loans at Variable Interest Rates

TOTAL

48,045,080

35,217,614

38,1 89,863

16,384,890

728,717

32,672,010

32,073,622

39,128,267

18,980,054

1,144,554

I 38,566, I 64

2,204,439

598,979

123,998,507

2,125,113

754,221

135,762,747 l2l,l19,173

Rate sensitivity of the loan portfolio, at December 3l ,2017 and 2016, are as follows

2017 2016

126,081,671

12,484,493

I12,339,755

11,658,752

I 38,566,1 64 123,998,507
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Notc 3 - I-OANS - (Continuation)

Allowance for Loan Losses

The activity in the allowance for loan losses fbr the year ended December 31,2017 is
sunrnrarized below:

YliA l( FNDLD l)llclrM lll,l( 3 I 2017

coNs'r'rruc'r'loN
COMML,RCIAI, AND IThSII)IIN'I'IN L

RllAl, LANI) lllrAt.
COMMI:RCIAl. ttr'l'A I'tl DEVlll-Ol'>MIlN-l' I'^S'[A l'I: coNSUMril{ 't'()tAl-

llalarrcc. llcginn irrg o {'Ycar

Irrcrcasc (l)ccrcase) in-
l\uvision lirr loan

Los s cs

I)cd u ct iorr s :

lorrts Chtrgcd Ofi'
I ess l{ecovcrics

Nct l.oarrs Chargcd Oll'

lJalancc. Ilegrrrnirr g ol' Year

lncrcasc in-

llovision firr [oan
I osscs

I)cductLrrrs:

l-oans Charged Ol1'

l.css lLccovcrics

Ncl loarrs Chargcd Off

l]ALANCI:. IiNl)Oli
Yl:A lt

69t,t50 568,0t4 565,224

426,178

(8r.8il)

( r09,8 r5)

937

(84,884)

(36.0e4)

282,8 r 8

(47.487)

(26,66s)

27s

t7,887

16.008

(24.1s2)

2,125, I r3

200,000

(Ktt,722)

(55. r 67) ) ql? (22.2431 (26,390) ( 19,8 12) ( 120,675)

l]AlANCl:. l:Nl)OI:
YtrA l{ 1.0(r2, I (r I 4(r I . I56 458,097 208,94 I 14.083 2,204,438

-l'lre activity in the allowance fbr loan losses for tlre year ended f)ecember 31,2016 is
sunrnariz.ccl below:

YEAIT liNt)liD DECI,MBlll ll 2016

CONSI'tTUC'I'ION

COMMUIiCIAI. n ND ItLSll)EN'l'lAL
ItlrAl. IAND I{liAL

COMMI:l{ClAl. tis'l'Alli l)llvtrl.OI'MtrN'l l1S1'A'l'll coNs(JMnt( r0r'n r.

445,7s3 5s5.842

556,346

(3 r0,949)

3U.27t 776.(t39 74,073 r .666,578

38.470 950.0002l ,070 308.108

(49,932)

42,-t77

26.006

(20,000)

113

(s | ,r46)
(r.(l90

(544,038)

s) s71

(l|.8il)
2,933

(3 r0,949) (8,878) (rO7,lss) (t9,827) (44.6sO (491,465)

(r91.150 568.034 565,224 282,tr l8 l7,tt87 2,125,113

Loans, or po(ions of loans, are charged off to the extent deenred uncollectible. Loan charge-

olls recluce the allowance flor loan losses, and recoveries of loarrs previously charged off are added back

1o thc allowance. Once the fair value for a collateral dependent loan has been delenninocl, zttty irnpaired
all'toultt is typically charged off unless the loan has other incorne strearns to support repayment. For
irnpaircd loans, lvhiclr have other inconre strearns to support repayment, a speciflc reserve is established
lbr the arnount determined to be inrpaired.
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Nolc 3 - I-OANS - (Conlinuatiorr)

'l-hc lollowing tables provide the loarr balance by impairrlent nrethodology. A loan is
cottsidcrecl irnpaired, in accordance with irnpailnrent accountiug guidance (FASB ASC 310-10-35
llec'aiverbles -Subsequenl Measurentcnl), when based on current informatiorr and everrts, it is probable
that the Cornpany will be unable to collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with tlre
corrtlactrralterrns of the loan. lmpailecl loans totaled $1,725,7l4 and $1,640,379 at Decenrber3l,2017
and 2016 arrd are cornprised ol'loans on non-accrual slatus and loans which have been classified as

lroutrled dcbl restructurings. All other loans are collectively evaluated l'or inrpailmerrl urrder FASII
ASC 450-20 Loss Contingencies. Althouglr the allowance for loan losses is compriscd of specific and
gcueral allocations, the entire allowance is available to absorb credit losses"

As of Decernber 31,2017 and 2016 there was no specific allowance required lor impairecl
loarrs.'l'hc tbllowing is a surnrnaly of information pertainingto inrpaired loatts at Decetnbcr 31,2011
ancl 20 16, segregated between loans for which an allowance has been provicled and loans for whiclr no
allowarrce has becn provided:

COMM[iItCIAI.

CONSTItI.-]CI'ION

COMMIITCIAI, ANI)

IIF]AI- IAND

lrS'lA'l'E l)llvll0l'MtrN'l C()NSLJMlrlt 'l Ol Al-

I)cccrnhcrll.20l7

RtTSIDIIN I'lAL

Irt.AI-

lis'l At'li

IJnpartl Corrtractual

l)rrncrpal llalauce

llccordcd lnvestrrcnl.

With No Allon,ancc

Ilccordctl hrvcslr)rcnt

W ith Alkrrvancc
'l otal l{ccorded

lnvcstrncnt

Ilclatcd Allorvartcc

Irrtcrcs t Incornc llccogn izcd

Iror tltc Ycar llrtdcd

[)cccnrbcrJl.20l7

55,4t7 775.634

536,457

623,652 805,880 1 8,778 428.296 r,876,60(r

I 8,009 110, I 97 r, r1J9,257

516,457

59 t.874 775,634 I 8,009 340,197 | .725.7l'4

I 17,000 I 17,()00

Avcragc Ilccortlcd Invcstrrrcnt 568,620 705.377 l]5,0]| q8, I 52 2,445 t,,509,(r25

,, oo1 'ls 71) 4,128 7,76t1 70,621
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Note 3 - I-OANS - (Contirruation)

COMMERCIAL

COMMT]RCIAI,

IIEA L

ES'I-ATE

CONSTIIUC'IION

ANI)

LAND

DEVI]I-OPMIJNT

IIESIDI.]N1'IA T,

REAt,.

ES'rA1'u CONSI.JMI]IT 'fo'fAl.

I)cr:cnrbcr' 3 l. 201 6

(.,npaid C0ntrirctual

l'r'incipal []alancc

ll.ccordcd lnvcslnronl.

With No Alkru,ance

Ilccordcd luvcslrnent

With Allorvancc
'I'otal llccordcd

llrvcslnrcnt

929,527 686,09 r 42,742 480,723 s,lM 2,144,227

557,307 620,247 42,?42 4t5.794 4.289 t.640,379

557,307 620,247 42,742 415,794 4.289 t,640,379

Avcragc llccordcd lnve slnrcnt 502,164 6J5,317 605,003 629,6s7 6,382 2.178.523

lntcrcst lncornc ltecogn izrd

l:or tlrc Ycar Lindcd

l)ccornbcr3l,2016 9,395 2,042 20,950 32.387

According to guidance provided in ASC 310-40 Troubled Debt Reslructurings by Creditors, a

loan restructuring or modification of terms is a TDR if the creditor for economic or legal reasons related

to the borrowet''s firrallcial difficulties grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise
consider. The Conrpany's portfolio of loans classified as TDRs include concessiorls, such as interest
rates below the current market rate, deferring principal payments, and extending maturity dates. "[he

Conrpany considers a loan in TDR status in default when the borrower's payment according to the
modified terms is at least 90 days past due or has defaulted due to expiration of tlte loan's maturity date.
'I'he lbllowing table summarizes troubled debt restructurings as of December 3l ,2017 and 2016:

NUMBER PRE- POST

OF LOANS MODIFICATION MODIFICATION

Decenrber 31,2017
Commercial

Commercial ILeal Estate

55,417 55,417

87 t33 87 133

t42.550 r 42.550

2

I

3TOTAL
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Nolc 3 - I-OANS - (Corrtinuation)

NUMBER
OF LONNS

PRII-
MODIFICAI'ION

POS'I
MODIITICAT ION

Decerrrber 31, 20l'6
Corn rnerc ial

Constructiorr and Lar.rd

Developnrent
llesiderrtial Real Estate

7 482,397

42,742
1,609

482,391

42,742
r,609

TOTAI, 526,148 526,'748

Durirrg the year ended December 3 I ,2017 , three loans were modified nreeling tlre criteria for
trorrblccl clebt restructurings. During the year ended December 31,2016, two loans wele rnodifiecl
rnceting lhe criteria fbr troubled debt restructurings. The nrodillcations cluring the years errding
l)ccenrbcr 3 I , 2017 and 2016 prinralily related to extending amortizatiorr periods. 'l'here were rro 'l'DlLs

llrat dcfirrrltcd under the modifled terrls ir.r either the year endirrg December 3 l, 2017 or 201(t .

-l'lre Cornpany's policy to discontiuue the accrual of interest incorrrc ott loarts when
r)ranagenrent believes that the borrower's financial condition, afler consideration of business conditions
arrd collcction ellbrts, is suclr that the collection of interest is doubttirl, or upon which principal or
irrtercst lras been in de lault for a period of 90 days or rnore and the asset is not both well securecl and
in thrr process ol collection. Subsequent interest payments received orr such loarts are applicd to
principal il'any doubt exists as to the collectability of such principal; otherwise, such receipts are

rccorded as interest income on a cash basis. An agreed analysis of past due and tton-accrual loans at

I)cccrtrbcr 31,2017 and 2016 follows:

9

CURRENT OR

LESS TI]AN
30 DAYS

PAS'I DUE

30-89

DAYS

PAST DUE

90 DAYS

PAST DUE

AND S1'ILL

ACCRUING

NoN
ACCIiUAI, TO'IN L

[)cccrrrbcr' 3l ,2017

Conrrnclcial

CornrnclciaI tleal Estate

Construction and Land

I)cveloprncrrt

Itcs idcntial lteal Estate
('o rr s tr rner

46,885,884

34,529,|3

38,171,854

15,051,444

128,(t05

622,739

964,646 28,603

|2

53(t.457

6{18,50 r

t8.009

340,197

4tt.04s,0n0

35,217,614

38, I 89,863

I 6,384.890

728,717

1,587,385 28,7 t5 I ,583, t64 I 38.566. I 64
,IOTAI-

135,366,900

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsidiaries l9



Note 3 - LOANS - (Continuation)

Dccerrrber 31, 2016

(-onrrrrcr'cial

Conrrtrelcial l{eal llstate
('onstruction and l-and

Developrnent
Ilcs idential lleal Estate
('o rr s rr r.ner'

CURRENT OR

I-ESS THAN
30 DAYS

PAST DI.-'E

30-89

DAYS
PAST DI.JE

90 DAYS
PAST DUE

AND S1'ILL
ACCRUING

NON
ACCRUAI, 't-o'rAt.

32, r 00,094

30,683, I 43

210,648

770,232

360,267

620,247

414,185

4,289

32,672.010

32,073,622

39,128,2(t7

18,980,054

1,144,554

t.00t

38,679,278

I 8, I 68,725

1,124,6t8

448,989

397,144

15,647

't'o't'AL 120,755,858 1,842,660 1,001 1,39ti,988 t23,998,507

'l'he following table provides infonnatiorr about the credit quality of llte loan portlblio usirrg

our Cornpany's internal rating systelr rel'lecting managelnent's risk assessment. l-oatts are placed on
rvatch statrrs rvhcn (l) onc or rnore weaknesses which could-ieopardize tinrely licluiclation exisls, or (2)
thc nrargin or liquidity of an asset is sufficiently tenuous tlrat adverse trends could result in a collection
problcnr. Loans classifled as substandard are inadequately plotected by lhc cun'enl sound worth ancl

paying capacily of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classilled nray ltave a well-
clcllrrcd weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the repaynrent of lhe clcbt. Suclt loans are

clraractcrized by thc distinct possibility that our Company may sustain sonre loss il'tlre def rciencies are

llot correctecl. Loarrs are placed on non-accrural status when (l) deterioration in the flnarrcialconclitiou
ol'thc borrorver exists such that paynrent of full principal and interest is not expected, or (2) payrnents

ol'principalor intercst has been in default fora period of 90 days or lnore and thc asset is rrot both well
securcd and in the process of collection.

CONS'I'RIJC-I'ION

COMMI:RCIA l. AND l{lrAl-
III|AI, I,N NI) ES'I A I11

COMMERCIAI. LS1'41'lr DEVHI.OPN4lN'f [{lrsll)l,N'l'lAl. CONSIJMlill 'l OlAl.
At l)cccnrtrcr3l.20l7

Watch S(atus

Substlntlartl
Norr -acctrr al

I'O'I'AI, 2,957,686 t,924,626 2t9,206 t,332,s77 6.434,095

f.993,848 705,292 - 2.699,140

427.381 530.833 201.197 992,380 * 2,151,79t

53(t,457 688.501 18,009 340,197 - 1,5113,164

At l)cccrnbcr'3 l. 2016

Watch Status

Srrbstarrtlaltl

Norr -accntal

I.484,566 I,t66,8rtt 4,289 t0.974.53 I

2,000,000

732,728

360,767

25 1.040

4,354,576

620,247

1,494,566 752,633

414.I ti5 4,289

2.25 r.040

7,324,503

t,398,988

IO'I AI 3.092.995 5.225,861
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Notc 4 - BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A sunrnrary of property and equipment as of December 31,2017 and2016 follows

2017 2016

Land

Bank Premises

Equiprnent, Furniture and Fixtures

Ar"rtornobiles

Total Banking Premises and Equipment

Con stluct ion and land Development

ResidentialRealEstate

3t4,992

s85,27 t

1,248,251

900,263 t.248,2s1

1,021,456

4,782,318

2,427,t33

69,468

1,021,456

4,782,3t8

2,377.273

69,468

8,300,375 8,250,515

Less Accumulated Depreciation 4,560,122 4,337,166

NET BANKING PREMISES AND
EQUIPMENT 3,740,253 3,913,349

Depleciation expense on the above assets was $222,956 and$237,468 for 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Notc 5 - FIIDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

The Bank is a rnenrber of the Federal Honre Loan Bank of Dallas arrd owns 990 and 5,387
shares of its capital stock at December 31,2017 and20l6 respectively, with a par value and cost of
$l00pershare. OwnershipofFederalHonreLoanBankstockisrestricted. Tlrestockcanbesoldonly
at par and only to the Federal Home Loan Bank or to another member ir:stitution.

Note 6 - FOI{ECLOSED ASSETS

During the years ended Decenrber 31,2017 and 2016, the Cornpany acquired real estate

propcrtics through foreclosure. The properties are reported at the lower of cost or fair value as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,

2017 20t6

TOTAL
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Note 6 - FORECLOSED ASSETS - (Contirruation)

Activity in real estate acquired in settlement of loans forthe year ended December 31,2017
and 2016 is as fbllows:

YEAIT ENDED DECEMBER 3I,
20tl 2016

Balance at Beginning of Year

Additions

Charge-ofl's

Proceeds fl'orn Sales

Net Gain (Loss) on Sales

Net Cain (Loss) on Sale of Real Estate

Provision for Losses

Operatirrg Expenses, Net of Rental Incorne

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON

FORECLOSED ASSETS

20,208

(20,208)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I

2017 2016

46,120 (7,834)

(20,208)

(23,372) (72 921\

22,748 ( r00,963)

795, I 38

900,263

(l ,709,67 l)
46,120

1,248,251

(20,208)

(425,01t)
(7,834)

TOTNL 3 1,850 795, I 38

An analysis of the allowance for losses on foreclosed assets for the year ended December 31,
201 7 and 2016 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMT]ER 3I

2017 2016

Balance at Beginrrirrg of Year

Provisiou for Losses

Less Property Sold

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

Operating expenses applicable to foreclosed assets irrclude the following:
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Note 7 - DEPOSITS

1'lre aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or n"rore at December 3 1,

2017 and 2016 anrounted to $ I 5,81 5,052 and $ I 1,141,635, respectively.

Time deposits and tlreir remaining maturities at December 3 l, 201 7 are as follows:

Matulitics oll
Onc Year or lrss
Onc to'l'hrcc Ycars
'l'hlec to I;ive Ycars

lrivc to'l'cn Years

.77o/oFllLB Advance Purchased December 19,

201(r, Due January 3,2017

Fedelal Funds Purchased fiorn Frost Bank

I(epurchase Agreenrcnt Secured by pledged lnvestment

Securities, Interest al .20o of Charter Bank's

Money Market Account Rate

14,0(,3,0(,9

I 3, I 03,753

6,1(t9,162

500,000

1'O1'n L 33,835,9114

Note 8 - SIIOI{'I'-TEI{M BORROWED FUNDS

At Decenrber 3 I , 201 7 and 201 6, shoft-ternr borrowed funds amounted to the l'ollowing:

YEAR ENDED DECL]MBER 3I

2017 2016

r0,500,000

1,475,0005,325,000

r,000,000 r,000,000

TOI-AL 6,325,000 12,975,000

ln 2017 the highest amount the Bank advanced frorn the Federal lJonre l-oan [Jank of Dallas
(fHLIl) was $10,500,000 arrd the amount was outstanding lbr 28 days. In 2016 there the highest
arnount the Bank advanced fronr the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas (FHLtl) was $ 14,800,000 and
the arnount was outstanding for 3l days. Under the terms of the Master Agreement with FHLB, the
Corrrpany has $49,223,096 available for advances at Decernber 3 l,20ll .

Under agreements with unaffiliated banks, the Bank may borrow federal funds up to
$4,925,000 on an unsecured basis at Decernber 31,2017 .
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Note 9 - RE'I-AINED EARNINGS

Itetained earnings consist of the following at December 31, 2017 and20l6:

20t7 2016

Accurnulated Adjustnrents Account:
Balance, Beginning of Year

Taxable lncorne, Net of Ceftain Non-Tamble lterlrs

Dislributions
Balance, End ofYear

Other Adjustnrents Account:
Balance, Beginning of Year

Non-Taxable lnterest
Dislributiorrs

Balance, Erd ofYear

Other Retairred Earn ings :

Ilalance, Beginning of Year

Diflerences Between Book and Tax lnconre

Diflbrerrce Between Acclual Basis Distributions
Balance, End ofYear

Year Endirrg December 31,:

2018

2019

2020

2021

4,979,155

(4,525,780)

4,087,418

(4,087,418)

453,375

14,807,504

3,191,342

fi,257,26t
4,016,064

(465,821)

17,999,846

(5, r s8,884)

(362,653)

(986,853)

14,807,504

(5,813,739)

(4s4,6e4)

I, I 09,549

(6,508,390) (5, I 58,884)

TO'TAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END

OF YEAR I 1,943,83 I 9,648,620

Nole l0 - OPEITATING LEASES

The Cornpany is a lessor of office space under an operating lease expirirtg December 31,2021.
Mininrurn flture rentals to be received on non-cancelable leases as of Decentber 31, 2017 are as

lbllows:

276,750

276,750

276,750

276,750

TOTAL 1,107,000

Note I I - COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES

'l-he Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with ofT-balance-sheet risk in
the nonnal course of business to meet the financirrg needs of its customers. These financial instruments

irrclude commitnrents to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such conrmitments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recogllized in the

balance sheets.
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Nolc I I - COMMITMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SIIEET AC'flVlTlES - (Continuation)

T'lte Corrpany's exposule to credit loss is represented by the contractual arnount ol' these
cornrr.ritrnerrts. '['he Conrpany follows the same credit policies in nraking commitmerrts as it does lbr
otr-balarrce-sheet instrurnents. At December 3 I , 201 7 and 2016, the following financial instrurnents
werc outstarrding wlrose contract amounts represerrt credit risk:

CONTRACT AMOUNT
2017 2016

Unfunded Construction and Land Developrrrent

Loarr Comnritnrents

Unlunded Cornnritments Under Lirres of Credit

Standby Letters of Credit

17,795336

17,695,512

6,323,368

19,092,924

16,110,896

3,241,168

Cornnritnrerrts to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as lorrg as there is no
violation of any condition established in tlre contract. Conrmitnrents generally have fixed expiratiott
datcs or other lermination clauses arrd may recluire payrnent of a fee.'l'he conrnritments lbr lines of
creclil may expirc without beirrg drawn upon. Therefore, the total conrmitrnent amounts do not
nccessalily represent future cash requirements. l'he arnount of collateral obtained, if it is deenred
ncccssary by thc Conrpany, is based on managerrent's credit evaluation of tlte cuslomer.

Standby letters-of-credit are conditional comrnitnrents issued by the Contpatty to guarantee lhe
pe rltrrrnance of a custorner to a third party. Those letters-of-credit are primarily issued to support public
arrcl privatc borowing an'angell1ents. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within
onc ycar'.'l'he credit risk involved in issuing letters-of-credit is essentially the sanre as that irrvolved irr

cxlcrrding loan Iacilities to customers. The Conrpany generally holds collateral supporting lhose
cornrnitnrcnts if'deerned necessary. Commitrnents to extend credit and standby letters-ofl-credit all
include exposure to sonre credit loss in the event ol'nonperfonnauce of the custonrer.

Note l2 - t,LGAL CONTINCENCIES

1'he Company is involved in various claims and suits, occurring in the nornral course of
busincss. ln tlrc opinion of managenrent, potential liabilities arising fi'onr these nratters, if any, would
not have a nraterial el'l'ect on the Cornpany's financial condition.

Nolc l3 - MINIMTJM I{EGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

'fhe Conrparry (on a consolidated basis) and the Barrk is subject to various regulalory capital
rccluircrrrerrts adrninistered by state and Federal bankirrg agettcies. Capital adecluacy artd prontpt
corrcctive action regulations involve quantitative lneasul'es of assets, liabilities, attd cettain of tbalance-
shect itents calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital anroutrts arrd classificatiotrs are

also subject to qualitative judgnrents by regulators about component classification, risk weiglrting, arrd

olhcr lhclors.

'l'he Basel lll capital rules becanre efTective forthe Company and Bank on Jattuat'y 1,2015,
sutrjcct to a lbur-year phase-in period. Quantitative measures established by the Basel lll capitalrules
1<l cnsure capital adeclLlacy require the maintenance of minimunr anrounts and ratios (set forth irt tlre

lablc below) of Cornrnon Equity Tier I Capital, Tier I Capital, and Total Capital to I{isk-Weighted
Asscls, ancl of l'ier I Capitalto Average Assets. ln connection with the adoption of the Basel lll capital

rulcs, lhe Contpany and Bank elected to opt-out of the requirenrent to include ntost contponents of
accurnulated other conrprehensive income in Conrmon Equity Tier I Capital.
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Notc l3 - MINIMtJM RECULA'|ORY CAPI'IAL If EQUlI{IIMENTS - (Corrtinuation)

Mattagettrent believes, as of Decenrber 3l ,2011 arrd 2016, that tlre Conrpany and Bank nret all
capital adcquacy requirer"nents to which they are subject. As of December 31,2017, tlre nrost recerrt
notillcation ti'orn the prinrary regulatory agency of tlre Bank categorized the Bank as well capitalized
rurtder the regulatoly fi'anrework for plonrpt corrective action.

Tlre fbllowirrg tables present actual and required capital ratios as ol December 31,2017 and
20l6lbrtheBankundertheBasel Illcapitalrules. "l'heminimunrrequiredcapitalamountspresentthe

tttirtittrtrnr recluirecl levels as of December 31,2017 and2016 based on the phase-irr o[tlre Basel lll
capital rulcs and the nrinirnurn required as of January 1,2019, wlrerr the phase-in is complete. Capital
lcvcls to bc considered well capitalized under prompt corrective action regulatiorrs are also presented.

AC'I'UAI-

MtNTMUM RFQuil{ril)
t;otl.cAPt't'At.

A I)l lQtJACY-l)ASlil. Ill
CI. J ITITTN'I PTIA SI]-IN

scr ltit)ut_t,

MINIMIJM CAPI'I'AI
RLQUil{'t)
l]ASl:l.lll

I;[-II,LY

Pl IASILIN

MINIM(,M
IllQtJlltl:l)'lI) llli

WIil,l. (lA I'l'lA LlZIll)
TJNI)IiII PITOMI'I'

colU{t c't'tvri A ct'loN
PROVISIONS

(n nx)ur)ts irr'l lrousands) AMOLJN'I RAI lO AMOUNT Rn 'l'lo AMOUN'I Il 'l lO AMOUN'I' rrA'r'ro

I)cccnrhcr ll,20l'7.
Cornrrron lrlrrity'l'icr I

Caprtal to l{isk Wciglrtcd
Asscts

l'icr I Capital to Risk

We iglrtctl Asscts

li)tal Capitill to
Ilisk Wcightcd Asscts

lrcr I Caprtillto
Avellgc Asscts

[)rccrrrbcr ]1,2016:
Cornrrxln liluity'l icr I

('aprtal to llisk Wcrghtcd
Assrts

.l'icr 
I Llaprtal to l(isk

We rghted Asscts

li)tal ('at)i(il1 to

I{isk Weightcd Asscts

'l 
tcr I Capital to

A vcragc Asscts

27.461

22.556 15.610V,

24.366 16863%

25.4'18 16019Y" 9,llt 5.7S(P/o I 1.092 7.(|lxt'/o I 0.1(x) 6 500%

25,478 16.07q% 1 1.488 '1250% 8,469 8 -s00% 17.677 8 (m0,%

t't 330,Yn 14,657 9.250% 16,618 l0 500% r5.li46 |0.(XXI%

25,478 t00t5% 10,176 4.000% 10.t76 4.(XX)"/, t2.720 5 000%

7.405 5.125"/o l0,t l5 7.000,t/o 9.1e2 (r.5il)%

8 500%, I t.560 tr (xx)%22.ss6 15 6t0% 9.571 6625% 12,282

12,463 8625% 15,172 10.500'2, 14,450 10 000%

22.556 9 2t\'.vo 9,788 4.(Wy/o 9.788 4 U)O"/o 12.234 5 000%

Charter Bancshares, lnc. and Subsicliaries 26



Notc l4 - COMPENSATORY STOCK OPTION PLAN

'I'he Cornpany has a stock option plan which includes both irrcentive stock options and
nonqualified slock options. The plan is for key employees designated by the Board on or before eaclr
plan year begins. Under the Plan the exercise price of each option equals the market price of the
Conrpany's stock on the date of grant as determined by the Board's compensation comnrittee. Options
may be exercised at 20Yo per year of service after the grant date.

'l'he following table illustrates a summary of outstarrding options at Decenrber 31,2017 and
2016

SHARES

WEIGHTED

AVERACE
EXERCISE

PRICE
.I'OTAL

Outstanding January l, 2016

G'anted

Exercised

li.etired

OUTSTANDING,
DECEMBER 3I,2016

G'anted

Exercised

OUTSTANDING,
DECEMBER 3I,2OI7

92.000

33.000

(2e.000)

(6.800)

23,925

20,000

22,938

24,088

22,781

25,000

23,481

2,201,100

660,000

(66s,200)

( I 63,800)

89.200

23.000

(20,600)

2,032,100

575,000

(483,700)

91.600 23,1 8 1 2,123,400

At December 3 l, 201 7, all eligible options under the plan were exercised

'l-he Cornparry applies FASB ASC 718 Compensation - Stock Contpensalion in accoutttittg for
the stock option plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for tlre incentive stock
options because the option price was equalto fair value at date of grant. Compensation expense for the

nonqualified stock options is based on the difference between fair market at the date of exercise and

tlre arnount tlre employee must pay to acquire the stock. For the year ended Decenrber 31,2017, tlre
Cornpany recognized no compensation expense for nonqualified stock options. For the year errded

Decenrbe r 31,2016, the Conrpany recognized $22,000 in compensation expense for nonqualified stock
options.
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Nolc l5 - tlMI'I,OYIlE IIENEFI'f PLANS

'llrc Cornpany sponsors a defined contribution savings plan that covers all ernployees.
I)articipants can coutribute a percentage of tlreir cornpensatiorr as pernritted by tlre lntcrnal llevenue
Code Section 401(k). 'l'he Cornpany will match 100% of the employee's contribution up to 3% of the
crrrployee's compensation and an additional 50% on the next 2Yo of the enrployee's compensation. The
Clornpany's contributions lor both 2017 and 2016 anrounted to $132,000.

Notc l6 - ITELATED PAI{TY ]'RANSACTIONS

Irt tlre ordiuary course olbusiness, the Conrpany makes loans to officcrs, directors and prirrcipal
stockholders. 'l'lrese loans are made on substantially the sanre terms, includirrg interest rates and
collatcral, as lhose prevailing at the tinre for cornparable tlarrsactions witlr other persons. Such loarrs

arrrorrrrted to $ 14,428,826 and $9,387,468 at Decenrber 3 l, 201 7 aud 2016, respectively.

Deposits ll'orn relatecl parties held by the Bank at December 31,2017 arrd 201(r arnourrted to
$33,41 1,446 and $25,085,249, respectively.

Nolc l7 lrn ll{ Vn LUIr OF FINANCIAL INSTRTJMUN]-S

-l-he 
Cornparry lollows the provisions of the ASC, Foir Vcrlue Meqsurement.\ artd Disclosures.

'l'lrc disclosures rcquired about fair value nleasurernertts include, alnong other things, (l) the arnounts
aud rcasorrs lbr certain signilicant transfers arnong tlre three hierarchy levels of irrputs; (2) the gross,
rather than uet, basis for cerlain Level 3 rollforward inforntation; (3) use of a "class" basis rather tlran
a rna"ior calegory basis for assets and liabilities; and (4) valuation techniques and inputs used to estimate
l,evcl 2 and Level 3 fair value nreasul'ernents. '[-he ASC defines fair value as tlte exchange price that
rvoulcl be received fbr an asset or paid to transfer a liability irr the plincipal or most advantageous market
lbr thc asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market pafticipants on the nreasurement date.

'l'he ASC guidarrce establishes a I'air valLre hierarchy for valuatiort inputs that priolitize the
inlnrts uscd irr valuation methodology in the following three levels:

Levcl I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities thal the reporting
errtity has tlre ability to access as ol'the rreasurement date.

Lcvel 2 - Observable inputs otherthan Level l, incluclirrg quoted prices lbr sirnilar assets or
liabilities, quoted prices in less active markets, or otlrer observable irrputs tlrat can be

corloboratecl by <lbservablc nrarket data.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs suppofted by little or no rnarket activity fbr llnancial instrunretrts
whose value is delermined using pricing models, discounted caslr flow rnellrodologies, or
sinrilar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determinatiott ol'fair value requires

sigrrilicant rrlanagenlent judgnrent or estirnation.

'l'he Conrpany uses fair value to measure certain assets and liabilities on a recurring basis when

liril value is the prirnary measure ol'accounting. This is done prirnarily for available-for'-sale securities.

liair valuc is uscd on a llonl'ecurring basis to nreasure certain assets wlten applying lower ol cost or
rnarkcl accountirrg or when adjusting carryirrg values, such as inrpaired loans and otlter real estate

rurvned. Fair value is also used when evaluating inrpairtnettt on cefiain assels, including held-to-

lnaturity and available-lbr-sale securities, goodwill, core deposits and other intangibles, long-livecl

assets, and fbr disclosures of cettaitt financial instruntents.

Tltere were rro transfers among the three hierarclry levels of irrputs.

a

a

a
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Nolc l7 - Irn lR Vn LUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - (Continuatiorr)

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instrumerrts measured at lair value on a

recurring basis, as well as the general classification of suclr instrunrents pursuant to the valuation
lricrarchy, is set forth below.

Sccuritics Available for Salc

Where quoted plices are available irt an active market, securities are classified within Level I

ol'tltc valuation hierarchy. Level I securities would include actively-traded govcrnnrent borrds, suclr
as ccrtairr LJnitcd States Treasury and other United States goverrrment and agcrrcy securities and
cxcltattge-tradcd ccprities. lf quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estirnaled by
tusirrg pricing rnodels, quoted prices of securities with sinrilar characteristics, or discourrted cash flows.
l,evcl 2 scculities generally include certain United States governrnent ancl agency securities. corltolate
clebt securities, and ce(ain derivatives. ln ceftain cases, where there is Iirnited activily or less

translrarency arouncl inputs to the valuation, securities are classified within l-evel 3 ol'the valuation
lr icrarclry.

'['lre following table sumrnarizes assets measured at fair valuc by class on a recurrirrg basis as

reporlcd orr thc consolidated balance sheets as of December 3l,20ll and 2016, segrcgatcd by lcvel
rvilhin thc Iair value rrreasurement hierarchy:

Asscls Mc:rsurcd at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

FA I IT VA LUE M EA SLJIIEM ENTS TJSING

QUO'I'ED PI{ICE

IN ACTIVE
MN RKETS FOI{

IDENTICAL
ASSETS

LEVEL I
'foTAt.

[)ecerrrber 3l,2017
Municipal Bonds

Other

't'o1'AL 109,342,133 tW,342,133

SIGNIFICANl-
OT'I ITJII

OI]SERVABLI]
INPUTS

1.DVEI,2

r09,t87,r33
t55,000

r09,r87,r33

t55,000

Dccenrber 31,2016

Municipal Bonds

Other

t09,I 18,36)

t55,000

r09, r rtt,369

r55,000

109,273,3(t9 109,273 .369]'O'fAL
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Note l7 - FAll{ VALUE Oltr FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - (Continuatiorr)

Assets Measuretl at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a
norrrecurrirrg basis, as well as the general classitlcation of such instrurnerrts pursuarrt to the valuation
hicrarchy, is set forth below.

lrnpaircd Loans

Tlre specific reserves for collateral-dependent impaired loans are deternrined based on the fair'
value of collateral rnethod in accordance with FASB ASC 310 Receivables. Urrdel the lair value of
collatcral rnethod, the specific reserve is equalto the differerrce between the carryirrg value of the loan
and the fair value of tlre collateral less estinrated sellirrg costs. When a specific resel've is required for
an inrpaired loan, tlre irnpaired loan is esserrtially measured at fair value. The fair value olcollateral
was dcterrnined based on appraisals, with further adjustments made to the appraised values due to
various lactors, including the age of tlre appraisal, age of comparables inclucled in the appraisal and
known changes in the rnarket and irr the collateral. The resulting fair value measurement is disclosed in
tlre nonrecurring hierarchy table. Where ad.justments rnade to appraisals are based on assumptions not
observable in the nrarkctplace and where estinrates of fair values used for other collateral supporting
cornrncrcial loans are based on assunrptiorts not observable in the nrarketplace, such valuations have
bcen classificd as l-evel 3.

Othcr llcal Estate Owned

Other real estate owned, upon inilial recognition, is measured and reportetl at lhir value less

estirnaled cosls ol disposal tlrough a clrarge-ofl'to tlre allowance for loan losses based upon the fair
valuc olthe otlrer realestate acquired. The fair value of other real estate owned is estimated based on
applaisals with furthet adjustnrents nrade to the appraised values due to various factors, irrcluding age

o['tlre appraisal, age of comparables included irr the appraisalarrd known changes in tlre market and on
the collateral. Because the assumptions used to estinrate the fair value of olher real estate owtted are

not observable in the nrarketplace, suclr valuations have been classified as Level3.

[n II{ VA Lt.lI t M I]A SUIiIM tN'l'S USING

QUO'.I'rjD PI{lCE
IN AC-I-IVI]

MARKETS IIOR

IDINI-ICAI,
ASSDI'S
I,I]VEI,I

I)cccrnbcr'31,2017

lrlpaircd I oans
Othcr l{cal [rstatc

Orvncd

I,(,011,7 I 4 I ,(,0{t,7 I 4

3 t,850 31,850

-r'o't'AL 1,640,564 l,(r40,564

I)cccrubcr' 3 I , 20 l6

Inrpaircd lrans
Olhcr l{cal listatc

Owrrcrd

t,640,379 l,(t40,379

795, I 38 79s, r 38

2,435,517 2.435.517

SICNIIIICAN'I'
o'il |l]R

OI]SERVABLI]
INPTJ'I'S

l.llvl:.|,2

sl(Nilrlcn N'l'
tJNOBStit{VAt}l-E

lNl,L.,'l's
l.t,vlit- 3 'l'o'l'AL

't'o't'n t.

Charter Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 30



Note l8 - PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Chafter Bancshares, lnc. (Parent Company only) at
Decernber 31,2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Balance Sheet:

DECEMBER 3I
2017 2016

ASSETS

Cash

I nvestment in Subsidiaries

Dividends Receivabh

TOTAL ASSETS

633,840

28.471.2il
1,450,000

143,613

24,350,461

1,086,244

3 55 104 25 l8

LIABILITIES AND
STocKHOLDERS' EQUTTY

l-iabilities-

Dividerrds Payable

Stockholders' Equity:

Common Stock

Surplus

Retairred Earnings

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Total Stockholders Equity

lncorne -

lJquily Earning frorn Subsidiaries

Expenses:

Compensation Expense

Administrative Expense

7,807,846 7,676,989

28,200

I

7,807,846 7,648,788

2,077,093

1,819,351

11,721,802

I 1,943,831

2,993,027

1,090,238

1,794,631

11,252,822

9,648,620

1,794,007

28,478,011 24.490.080

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STocKHOLDERS' EQUITY 30,555,104 25,580,318

l'lre Staternent of Income for the year ended December 3 I , 201 7 and 201 6 is as fbllows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I

2017 2016

NET INCOME
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Note l8 - PAI{ENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - (Continuation)

The Statemerrt of Cash Flows for the year ended Decenrber 3 I , 20 I 7 and 201 6 is as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I
2017 2016

Caslr Flows frorn Operating Activilies:

Net Income

Adjustrnents to Reconcile Net Income to Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries

Dividends Received from Subsidiaries

Stock Compensation Expense

Net Change in-

Dividend Receivable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

7,807,846 7,648,788

(363,757) l,l 13,756

4,522,306 4,027,999

(7,801,846)

4,996,063

(7,676,989)

2,920,444

22,000

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds frour Sale of Cornmon Stock

Dividends Paid

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Increase in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Year

CASH, END OF YEAR

(4,032,080) (3,888,040)

490,226 139,959

143,614 3,655

633,840 143,614

493,700

(4,525,780)

665,200

(4,553,240)
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